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This is DNV

DNV is a global provider of services for managing risk. Established in 1864, DNV is an independent foundation with

the objective of safeguarding life, property and the environment. DNV comprises 300 offices in 100 countries, with

6,100 employees.
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DNV operates in a wide range of industries internationally and is organised into four business areas. 

DNV MARITIME
A world leading classification society.
n 16.5% of the world fleet to class
n 19% of newbuilding tonnage ordered in 2005
n 70% of maritime fuel testing market

DNV TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
Providing safe and reliable operations to the oil, gas 
and process industry through cutting-edge technology
n Technology qualification of new technical solutions, 

products, and concepts
n Risk-based verification and compliance services
n Offshore classification services for drilling, production, 

and storage units
n Asset operation services

DNV CERTIFICATION
A world leading provider of certification, verification, 
and assessment services.
n More than 80 national accreditations and 50,000 customers
n In the forefront with new and innovative assessment and 

certification services, such as Risk Based CertificationTM,
an exclusive approach to management system certification

DNV CONSULTING
Safely and responsibly improving business performance
Integrating business risk and technical competence
n Enterprise risk management
n Asset risk management
n Safety, health, and environmental risk management
n Systems and software risk management

This is DNV
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This is DNV

Long-term goals and short-term targets are established for

quality, profitability and growth. In case of conflicts, the quality

target is priority number one, the profitability target is priority

number two, and the growth targets priority number three. 

We will differentiate ourselves from the competition by ensur-

ing that our customers perceive higher value from our services

and solutions based on the quality of delivery, integrity and

technological excellence.

QUALITY AND INTEGRITY 
We must live our values as expressed in the value statement:

“We never compromise on our quality or our integrity”. High

quality is the single most important factor for DNV to generate

opportunities. Quality or integrity cases are the biggest threat

to our business. 

PROFITABILITY
DNV shall balance its investments in new services, markets and

people with the need for a sound and sustainable profitability. 

GROWTH 
Growth is important to realise DNV’s objective and to renew

DNV’s services, take advantage of market opportunities, attract

people and create new opportunities for our staff. Economy of

scale is also important for our competitiveness and profitability.

In order to realise DNV’s objective, serve our customers better

and extend our knowledge base, DNV aims to retain existing

business, grow existing services and develop new business. 

Objective: 

TO SAFEGUARD LIFE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT 

Vision: 

TO BE OUR CUSTOMERS’ FIRST CHOICE IN PROVIDING SERVICES 
FOR MANAGING RISK 

Value statement: 

WE NEVER COMPROMISE ON OUR QUALITY OR OUR INTEGRITY 

DNV’s reason for being 
The objective describes DNV’s ultimate purpose; our reason for being. All strategic goals and

actions are means to fulfil the objective. DNV’s strategy is to continuously improve in terms of

quality and profitable growth. 
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Regional officeHead office

DNV’s growth within its core business has been significant 

at 15%. 10% of this is organic growth, while the remaining

5% is growth through acquisitions.

The biggest acquisition in 2005 was that of the US-based 

CC Technologies in February, which brought 125 experts 

on onshore pipelines into DNV. 

Early in 2005 DNV also bought Jardine, a provider of asset 

risk management solutions. Jardine’s performance forecasting

services are well known within the existing markets served 

by DNV. 

Another prioritised strategic growth area has been IT risk

management. Existing activities were complemented by the

purchase of Hamburg-based Tireno Innovations AG in

December 2005. Considerable growth is expected in this area.

DNV’s information quality management activities are already

growing faster than expected.

FOCUS ON CORE BUSINESS
DNV’s original strategic ambitions to regionalise its inspection

activities in Sweden were not met. DNV Inspection AB, which

employed 490 people in Sweden, was therefore sold to the

Finnish inspection agency Inspecta in 2005.

The merger of DNV’s facility-management activities in DNV

Eiendom (Real Estate) and Coor Service Management’s

operations in Norway was another move in the direction 

of an increased focus on core activities. 125 employees were

transferred from DNV to the merged company.

ACTIVE RECRUITMENT
While 615 persons have transferred to other companies, the

number of employees has only been reduced by 141. DNV

remains committed to actively attracting and retaining talented

people, and recruits worldwide, particularly in China, Russia,

Brazil and India. 

Gearing up for growth
For DNV, 2005 was characterised by important strategic decisions. The current strategy plan entitled

“More focus, higher ambitions” materialised in decisions to sell out non-core activities, grow 

existing business and develop new business through active recruitment and strategic acquisitions.



President’s introduction

THE DNV MANAGEMENT TEAM: 

> Chief Relations and Communications Officer Tom Virik

> Chief Human Resource and Organisation Officer Paul S. Campbell

> Chief Legal Officer Amund W. Skou

> President and Chief Executive Officer Miklos Konkoly-Thege

> Chief Technology Officer Peter Bjerager

> Chief Financial Officer Torolf Aadnesen

> COO DNV Technology Services Elisabeth Harstad

> COO DNV Certification Henrik O. Madsen

> COO DNV Consulting Iain M. Light

> COO DNV Maritime Tor E. Svensen
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Never before has the fight for talent been tougher than we 

see it today. Competence – or rather competent people – is a

prerequisite for any company or organisation with ambitions. 

One of DNV’s goals is to “acquire, develop and share knowl-

edge and apply it to enhance value for our customers”. The

value of our knowledge and experience to our customers, and

the society at large, depends substantially on its uniqueness

and applicability. This has been and will remain the predomi-

nant competitive edge of DNV.

Our reputation depends on our people and their competencies.

Thus, DNV’s most important asset is its staff. The demand for

competent and well educated individuals seems insatiable.

The global fight for talent will remain one of the most 

challenging management issues for DNV as an international

competence-based company.

DNV has built a strong position within our main markets.

DNV has become a truly international company with 6,100

employees representing more than 80 nationalities, and

offices in close to 100 countries. 

We have been able to strengthen our brand, and it has become

one that is reflecting quality, technology and integrity. This is

achieved through our core competence of identifying, assessing

and managing risk. As a consequence, we have met our targets

for growth and financial performance.

None of these aspects are ends in themselves. They are 

proof of us meeting our objective “to safeguard life,

property and the environment”. They are means to enable 

us to become the thought-leader we want to be when it 

comes to managing the new risk reality in different facets 

of sustainable development.

Our aim is to help our customers safely and responsibly

improve business performance. This can only be done

through the competent and dedicated staff that we have!

Having served in DNV’s Executive Board for more than two

decades, out of which as CEO for the past four years, I can

truly state that it has been a privilege to work with such a 

variety of inspiring colleagues, in an organisation where 

the objective binds us together and influences our thinking

and behaviour. I do believe the objective of DNV is, and 

in the future will remain, a positive differentiating factor 

in the fight for talent.

President’s introduction

The fight for talent

MIKLOS KONKOLY-THEGE
President and Chief Executive Officer



Report of the Board of Directors

> C. Maury Devine

> Audun Brandsæter

> Atle Bergshaven

> Mary Grace Anderson

> Tom Ruud

> Knut Vågnes

> Axel C. Eitzen

> John H. Wiik

> Unni Marsteinstredet 

Aagedal

DNV´S BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
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Throughout 2005, DNV strengthened its position in all sectors

of its activities through a continuous focus on the quality and

integrity of all its deliveries. This year has seen high levels of

activity across the organisation, leading to significant growth

and to the planned level of profitability being exceeded.

At the year-end 2005, 19% of all contracted ship newbuildings

worldwide was built to DNV rules. A consistent fight against

substandard vessels and operations has given DNV a quality

image which in turn has attracted many of the leading ship-

ping companies to DNV class.

Assessment services have over the past decade grown to

become DNV’s second largest business area. DNV is among

the world’s top three management system certification compa-

nies, with a prime position in the certification of environmen-

tal management systems. Risk related technology services have

been in great demand in the oil and gas industry. The North

Sea is still the most important area for DNV, but strong growth

is being seen in Brazil, Russia, China and Africa.

A sound financial foundation and consistent profitable results

are required to secure financial independence in order to

maintain the integrity of DNV’s operations. In 2005, DNV’s

equity ratio reached 64%. The operating profit came to NOK

695 million, compared with NOK 389 million in 2004. The

net profit for 2005 amounted to NOK 479 million, up from

NOK 148 million in 2004.  

The Board of Directors considers the company’s financial 

situation to be good, and to allow a high degree of freedom 

to act on new opportunities. DNV’s objective continues to 

be to safeguard life, property and the environment.

During the second half of 2005, the Board carried out a

process to identify the successor to Chief Executive Officer

(CEO) Miklos Konkoly-Thege. The Board is pleased to state

that there were several strong internal candidates for the 

position. In December, Dr. Henrik O. Madsen (52), Chief

Operating Officer of DNV’s certification activities, was chosen

as DNV’s next CEO. He has in-depth knowledge of DNV’s

international markets and broad DNV experience from his 

23 years in various positions in the company. Henrik O.

Madsen acts as Deputy CEO until he formally takes up the

position as CEO in May 2006.

STRATEGY
DNV’s main strategic goal is to become “the world’s leading

classification society and certification company, and a leading

technology and business risk consulting firm”. Strategy devel-

opment was high on the Board’s agenda throughout 2005.

Special attention was paid to the need for future growth, 

combined with an increased focus on core activities. DNV’s

core competencies, complemented by possible acquisitions,

represent the basis for any growth.

Report of the Board of Directors

Report of the 
Board of Directors 2005  
Society in general has adopted a zero tolerance for failure, and companies are expected to run

safe, reliable and efficient operations. This in turn creates a demand for technical and business 

risk services to meet these expectations. With its objective of safeguarding life, property and the

environment and as one of the world’s leading providers of risk management services, DNV is in 

a unique position to respond to these demands. The company has had a growth of 15% in target

markets, based on its core competence: Identifying, assessing and advising on how to manage risk.

>



Report of the Board of Directors

SUCCESSION PLANNING: CEO Miklos Konkoly-Thege (left) and his successor Henrik O. Madsen. During the second half of 2005, the

Board carried out a process to identify the successor to Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Miklos Konkoly-Thege. The Board is pleased that there

were several strong internal candidates for the position. In December, Dr. Henrik O. Madsen (52), Chief Operating Officer of DNV’s certification

activities, was chosen as DNV’s next CEO. He has in-depth knowledge of DNV’s international markets, and broad DNV experience from his 

23 years in various positions in the company. Henrik O. Madsen formally takes up the position as CEO in May 2006.



As part of the strategy process, the Board and management

establish annual Key Performance Indicators, which represent

special focus areas for follow up. For 2005, one of these goals

was to increase gender diversity. Another was to further

increase growth and innovation and realise new business

opportunities. With the financial resources available, these 

are ambitions that will be pursued even more systematically 

in the years to come.

DNV has developed and implemented country analysis proce-

dures, realising that new oil and gas developments often take

place in regions with difficult business environments, includ-

ing corruption. The CSR-related aspects when establishing 

a presence in new countries, including the establishment of

good governance, have been increasingly focused on.

The rapid growth of DNV operations in West Africa has demon-

strated the importance of good control systems, experienced

expatriates and local knowledge. Throughout 2005, DNV had 

to restructure and downsize its operations in this region.

The acquisition of US-based CC Technologies in February

2005 gave DNV 125 experts on onshore pipelines. DNV’s 

offshore pipeline expertise is internationally recognised, and

the acquisition of CC Technologies has added complementary

know-how in this strategically important market segment.

DNV has been building a strategic position in the ICT risk

management area for some years. The past acquisition Q-Labs

and the in-house R&D and business development activities

were complemented by the purchase of Hamburg-based

Tireno Innovations AG in December 2005. Considerable

growth is expected in this area in the years to come. 

DNV Inspection AB in Sweden was sold to the Finnish inspec-

tion agency Inspecta in 2005. DNV’s original strategic ambi-

tions for the inspection activities in Sweden, which employed

490 people, were not met. The sale thus represented a neces-

sary move according to DNV’s strategy of having an increased

focus on core activities. 

The merger of the facility management activities in DNV

Eiendom (Real Estate) and Coor Service Management’s opera-

tions in Norway was another move in the direction of an

increased focus on core activities. Although the initial owner-

ship is equal, the Swedish owner, Coor Service Management

AB, has the lead through a majority of the members of the

Board of Directors. The merged company aims to become

Norway’s leading supplier of Integrated Facilities Management

Services, with operations throughout the country.

DNV MARITIME
In the maritime area, DNV’s ambition is to be the world’s lead-

ing classification society in terms of quality, profitability and

growth, in that order. This can only be achieved by playing a

key role in the efforts to eradicate substandard shipping.

Regulatory bodies – and the public at large – expect classifica-

tion societies to represent the shipping industry’s most effec-

tive safety net. The role of class can best be safeguarded by

delivering on these expectations, based on technical expertise

and impartial, independent judgements.

The introduction of common rules for tankers and bulk carri-

ers represents a significant development in maritime safety.

The decision to develop common rules for tankers was made

in 2001, and the rules will become applicable to all members 

of the International Association of Classification Societies

(IACS) in 2006. By working with one set of common class rules

as the basis for design approval and newbuildings, competition

between the classification societies will be based on service,

cost efficiency and value-adding expertise, not on safety.

Within the field of ship classification, DNV’s share of the world

fleet measured in gross tons is approximately 16.5%, about the

same as in 2004. Of the newbuilding tonnage contracted dur-

ing 2005, DNV’s share of the world market was close to 20%

measured in gross tons. This represents 294 ships. A total of

5,093 trading vessels, representing 107.2 million gross tons,

were classed by DNV at the year-end 2005.

Ships classed by DNV have among the lowest detention rates

according to the worldwide Port State Control statistics, and

figures for 2005 show a substantial reduction in the number 

of detained DNV-classed vessels. Over a three-year rolling peri-

od, DNV was found to have a detention ratio of just 2.73% of

ships inspected. The average of the IACS members is 4.22%,

while the corresponding non-IACS detention ratio is 23.8%.

During 2005, DNV engaged in efforts to improve the image of

the shipping industry. The basis for an improved image is that

each individual player in the industry performs according to

agreed international standards and societal expectations, both

with regard to safety levels and corporate social responsibility.

Although the shipping industry can document continuous

safety improvements, it will not succeed in improving its image

until it has eliminated substandard operators and their vessels.

Through a joint initiative, the Maritime Industry Foundation

has been established to provide factual information from the

shipping industry. DNV is committed to supporting this initia-

tive both professionally and financially in order to improve the

image of shipping.

DNV CERTIFICATION
Within the field of certification, DNV’s ambition is to become

the preferred provider of certification and conformity assess-

ment services, founded on a risk based approach.

Risk Based CertificationTM represents DNV’s exclusive

approach to management system auditing. No other certifica-

tion body offers risk analysis as part of the certification process

to support the customers in their efforts to improve opera-

tions. In a market where the same quality management and

Report of the Board of Directors
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environmental management systems standards form the basis

for all certification bodies, Risk Based CertificationTM has

become an important differentiator for DNV.

The demand for quality management system certification is

growing at a more moderate pace, indicating that important

markets have matured. There is still considerable growth in

the demand for environmental management system certifica-

tion. DNV is the leading player in this field, and among the

top three in quality management system certification.

DNV was instrumental in establishing the Independent

International Organization for Certification (IIOC) in 2005,

consisting of the leading global certification bodies. The IIOC

aims to coordinate technical and other non-commercial

interests on behalf of the major certification companies. 

The certification industry consists of some global players and

a large number of regional and local providers of accredited

certification.

Multinational companies are increasingly taking corporate

control of the certification body selection process for the

whole group. They are moving towards global quality, environ-

mental and safety systems. DNV has introduced ConCert, a

production and customer management system that will be fur-

ther developed to meet the needs of multinational customers.

DNV Certification’s first priority has for some years been the

automotive and food industries. In 2005, the ICT and energy

and process industries were also targeted for future growth.  

Besides management system certification, corporate responsi-

bility services and training represent a considerable part of

the growth within DNV Certification. The demand is growing

for validation of projects in which companies in industrialised

countries invest in climate change efforts in the developing

world, based on the Kyoto Protocol. DNV was the first compa-

ny to be accredited by the UN Framework Convention on

Climate Change to perform such validation, and has today

more than 50% of this market.

DNV TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
In the area of Technology Services, DNV’s ambition is to be the

preferred provider of risk related technology services to the oil,

gas, energy and process industries, leveraging its cutting-edge

technologies, industry knowledge and global network.

The high oil price has introduced new trends in the inter-

national oil and gas industry. Mature provinces like the North

Sea have become more attractive, leading to a higher level of

activity than anticipated. The North Sea represents the most

important area of activity for DNV Technology Services. At 

the same time, expertise and technology development in the

North Sea represent vital assets in our international expansion.

Russia and the FSU countries are an important area for future

DNV growth. A new regional head office is located in Moscow

to serve the oil and gas development projects in the area. 

Deepwater developments, marginal fields and tail-end produc-

tion have become more profitable as a consequence of the

high oil price. The demand for innovative technologies, which

call for qualification, has increased. This has led to higher

levels of activity at the laboratories in Singapore, Høvik and

Bergen.

Report of the Board of Directors

FUEL TESTING: Fuel samples in DNV

Petroleum Services´ laboratory in

Rotterdam.



Projected offshore Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) terminals

have developed more slowly than expected. This allows for a

better resource build-up in DNV, but has led to problems for

parts of the supply chain that are dependent on the terminals.

New LNG developments also include floating production,

containment and offloading solutions in addition to a large

number of LNG vessels.

The acquisition of CC Technologies has proven successful and

complements DNV’s range of services for the pipeline indus-

try. Based on its Pipeline Rules, DNV is involved in most of 

the world’s major offshore pipeline development projects.

DNV CONSULTING
DNV’s ambition in the field of consulting is to develop a lead-

ing business and technology risk management consulting firm,

providing solutions that integrate business risk management

and technical expertise. The aim is to help customers safely

and responsibly improve their business performance.

After a temporary setback in 2004, last year brought DNV

Consulting back on a level of growth and profits in accordance

with its strategic goals. Its main areas of operation are still

Norway, the UK, the US, Germany and the Benelux countries.

The acquisition of Jardine in January 2005 has added major

performance forecasting and asset optimisation projects,

awarded in the key market sectors of transport, oil and gas 

and refining operations, to DNV Consulting’s value-adding

service portfolio.  

DNV was involved in 40% of the world’s LNG projects in 2005.

Risk assessments as a basis for operators in their approval

processes with the authorities represent one main line of 

business. The second consists of feasibility studies and quality

reviews of LNG project plans with regard to safety, technology,

production and financial performance.

Following a successful build-up of IT risk management consult-

ing activities in Norway, an international roll-out has been ini-

tiated, starting in Germany and the UK. The acquisition of

Tireno Innovations AG in Hamburg is a part of this growth

strategy, which is based on the realisation that the failure of 

IT systems may lead to catastrophic events, critical business

consequences or severe information security leaks. The IT risk

management services cover areas such as systems and software

safety and reliability, information security, and efficient IT

service management. 

DNV SOFTWARE
DNV Software has introduced IT solutions for managing work-

flows, enabling companies to standardise the work processes in

their production lines. The results are improved engineering

quality and productivity and lower production and operational

costs within, for example, the shipping, offshore and pipeline

industries.

ORGANISATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2005, DNV had 6,095 employees, com-

pared to 6,236 at the year-end 2004. The total number of

employees includes 5,759 permanent staff and 336 staff

employed on time-limited contracts. A total of 615 employees

left DNV in 2005 due to the sale of DNV Inspection and

DNV’s facility management activities at Høvik.

81 nationalities are represented on the staff. The turnover of

personnel during 2005 was 7.4%, compared to 5.7% in 2004.

The Board acknowledges the dedicated efforts of all the

employees in fulfilling DNV’s objective.

The high level of activity in both the maritime and oil and gas

industries has led to a stronger demand for qualified person-

nel. The fight for talent has become tougher, and it is a consid-

erable challenge for DNV to attract and retain skilled people.

Extended trainee programmes have been designed in order 

to make the company more attractive to students in the fields

most relevant to DNV. Job rotation and career development

plans are means to retain employees who are increasingly

attractive in the market.

Corporate and business area goals and action plans to increase

gender diversity are in place, together with measures to track

status and progress. An international mentoring programme 

for female technical managers has been established, with senior

managers as mentors. At the end of 2005, 32.4% of the DNV

staff were female, compared to 30.5% at the year-end 2004.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT
The level of lost-time accidents in DNV compares favourably

with general industry standards. The sickness absence rate 

was 2.3%, compared to 2.2% in 2004.

A joint initiative by Lloyd’s Register, American Bureau of

Shipping and DNV was initiated early 2005 to improve the

safety of surveyors on assignments. Surveyors can be put 

under pressure to carry out work in a potentially unsafe 

location. According to this initiative, a refusal by one of these

major class societies to work in unsafe locations will represent

a refusal by all three. 

DNV’s own activities do not have any significant negative

impact on the environment. Recycling programmes are in

place in most offices to handle paper and other consumables,

and efforts are made to reduce energy consumption at major

offices. The DNV headquarters incorporates a seawater heat-

ing pump to recover energy.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
A strong global economy and DNV’s market positioning have

resulted in a good financial performance and a long-term

order reserve that is better than ever. DNV achieved revenues

of NOK 6,697 million in 2005, NOK 740 million or 12% more

than in 2004. All the business areas achieved sound growth,

Report of the Board of Directors
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but the fastest growth was within DNV Technology Services and

DNV Maritime. DNV’s core business activities grew by 15%.

The operating profit increased from NOK 389 million in 2004

to NOK 695 million in 2005, representing an operating margin

of 10%. The improvement in operating profit between 2004

and 2005 is partly explained by the sale of the subsidiary DNV

Inspection AB in Sweden in October 2005, which produced 

a gain of NOK 190 million compared to this company’s book

value.   

DNV does business in 70 different currencies and has sub-

sidiaries and branch offices in close to 100 countries. The

improvement in net financial items from NOK –52 million 

in 2004 to NOK 49 million in 2005 is mainly explained by the

direct and indirect effects of exchange rate developments.  

The tax cost was extraordinarily high in 2004 due to the

Norwegian tax reform approved by Parliament in November

2004. The tax cost in 2005 of NOK 265 million gives an aver-

age tax cost of 36% of the NOK 744 million in pre-tax profit.  

The net profit after tax in 2005 came to NOK 479 million,

compared with NOK 148 million in 2004 and NOK 308 

million in 2003. 

DNV has a sound cash flow and no interest-bearing debt. 

At the year-end, its short-term financial investments in equity

funds and the money market amounted to NOK 633 million,

and it had unused available credit lines of NOK 750 million.

DNV has a strong balance sheet with a total equity of NOK

3,598 million, equal to 64% of its total assets.  

The accounts for the parent company, the DNV Foundation,

show a profit after tax of NOK 19 million which has been 

allocated to Other Equity. The Board of Directors confirms

that the financial statements are based on the going-concern

assumption.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 
DNV believes that the demand for its services will continue 

to be high in 2006. This is based on the assumption that the

oil price will remain high and that there will be a high level 

of activity in all our main markets. The order reserves for all

the business areas are very satisfactory at the start of 2006, 

and DNV expects a sound growth in revenues in 2006. 

The financial risks are primarily related to currency fluctua-

tions, in that a strengthening of the NOK may have consider-

able negative effect.

As society has adopted a zero tolerance for failures, any acci-

dent or incident involving DNV represents a risk to the brand.

The only way to handle the future risk to our reputation and

standing in the market is by living up to DNV’s value state-

ment: Never compromise on quality or integrity.

Report of the Board of Directors
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President and Chief Executive Officer
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ATLE BERGSHAVEN – Chairman of the

Board of Directors. Member of the Board

since 2003. Chairman and CEO of Bergshav

Group of companies. Member of the Board

of Norwegian Hull Club and North of

England P&I Club. Council member of

Intertanko.

AUDUN BRANDSÆTER – Member of the

Board since 2002. Elected by the employ-

ees of DNV. Principal Engineer/ Project

Manager, Information Quality Management.

Joined DNV in 1982.

MARY GRACE ANDERSON – Member 

ofthe Board since 2005. Development

Engineering Manager – Europe, Shell

Exploration and Production International

B.V. Member of the Board A/S Norske

Shell. Member of the Board Shell UK

Limited. Member of the Board Enterprise

Oil Limited.

C. MAURY DEVINE – Member of the

Board since 2000. Former President and

Managing Director, Mobil Exploration

Norway, Inc. Fellow, Harvard University.

Member of the Board of Directors of

Independence Air and the National Foreign

Language Center. Member, Council on

Foreign Relations.

AXEL C. EITZEN – Member of the Board

since 2004. Chief Executive Officer and

Member of the Board Camillo Eitzen & Co

ASA. Chairman of the Board NaturGass

(USA) AS. Member of the Board Northern

Oil ASA. Member of the Executive

Committee Gard.

JOHN H. WIIK – Member of the Board

since 2003. Managing Director Norwegian

Hull Club. Chairman of the Board, Fana

Sparebank. Member of the Board

Handelsbanken (Norway).

TOM RUUD – Member of the Board since

2002. Group Executive Vice President

Nordea AB. Member of Group Executive

Management. Head of Corporate

Institutional Banking and President of

Nordea bank Norge ASA. Member of the

Board VPC AB, Stockholm. Member of the

Board Finansnæringens Hovedorganisasjon

(FNH), Oslo.

KNUT VÅGNES – Member of the Board

since 2002. Elected by the employees of

DNV. Senior Principal Surveyor, DNV

Maritime, Maritime Technology and

Production Centre. Joined DNV in 1969.

UNNI MARSTEINSTREDET AAGEDAL –

Member of the Board since 2002. Elected

by the employees of DNV. Principal con-

sultant, DNV Consulting. Joined DNV 

in 1999.
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DNV Maritime

Years of hard work by DNV and other

members of the International Associ-

ation of Classification Societies (IACS)

came to a conclusion in late 2005 when

the Council of IACS unanimously adopt-

ed the common structural rules for

tankers and bulk carriers. The goal with

the new rules is to remove competition

on safety and scantlings among classifi-

cation societies. Further, a premise was

that the new rules should result in ships

being at least as safe as, and more

robust than, those built to the present

rules of any of the ten IACS members.

The new rules will come into effect on 

1 April 2006. This is an important step

towards ensuring safe shipping.

DNV is now determined to help 

customers meet the new standards in 

a cost-efficient way. DNV’s structural

approval engineers around the world

have been extensively trained and are

already cooperating with yards and

designers, supported by DNV’s software.

PREFERRED BY KOREAN 
SHIPBUILDERS
At the end of 2005, DNV launched its

new Nauticus Hull software, which pro-

vides support for the common structural

rules for tankers. This software has been

developed in close cooperation with

major shipyards in Korea and Japan,

which have been instrumental in the

testing, development and calibration 

of the new rules.

The Korean Shipbuilders’ Association

has stated a preference for DNV’s

Nauticus Hull software in its review of

the IACS common structural rules for

tankers. The comments from the associ-

ation clearly indicate that DNV is taking

the lead in providing software and sup-

port. DNV launched this software well

ahead of its competitors, and will con-

tinue to develop software for Nauticus

Hull, including software that supports

the new IACS unified bulk carrier rules. 

BUILDING ON STRENGTH
DNV Maritime's strategy is to differenti-

ate itself from the competition by focus-

ing on quality of performance, service

to the customers and technical compe-

tence. The success of this strategy is

materialised in an increased customer

portfolio, a newbuilding contract vol-

ume higher than ever experienced by

DNV, and growth in the demand for

technical and management services 

provided through Maritime Solutions.

Continued growth is expected, with

DNV Maritime building on the strong

position gained both in classification

and consulting services through the

chosen strategy.

BENCHMARKING
DNV’s work on quality is reflected by

the latest port state control detention

statistics. For the rolling period 2002–

2004, ships classed by DNV had the

lowest detention rates. Figures for 2005

show a substantial reduction in the

number of detained DNV-classed vessels.

Based on the accumulated figures for

this three-year period from the four

major port state regimes in the world –

the Paris MoU, Tokyo MoU, Indian

Ocean MoU and the United States

Coast Guard – the DNV detention rate

as a percentage of vessels inspected was

2.73%. This compares to the average 

of 6.23% for all classification societies 

and 4.22% for IACS members. 

The agreement on common structural rules in December 2005 was an important step

towards ensuring safe shipping. All members of the International Association of

Classification Societies have now agreed on common structural rules for tankers and 

bulk carriers to be built after 1 April 2006. Within classification this is the most important

strategic move for decades. 

< FULL SPEED AHEAD: 2005 was a record year for DNV Maritime in terms of total fleet in class, as well as newbuilding tonnage.

Differentiation through
competence and service

>



DNV Maritime

THE DNV-CLASSED FLEET AT THE YEAR END COMPRISED 5,093 VESSELS, CORRESPONDING TO 107.2 MILLION

GROSS TONNES. DNV’S ORDER BOOK OF NEW VESSELS CORRESPONDED TO 19% OF THE TOTAL TONNAGE ON

ORDER GLOBALLY, TOTALLING SOME 733 VESSELS TO BE DELIVERED OVER THE NEXT FEW YEARS.

DNV HAS TRADITIONALLY BEEN THE PREFERRED CLASSIFICATION SOCIETY FOR COLD CLIMATE SHIPPING, 

AND HAS A 60% MARKET SHARE OF ALL TANKERS WITH ICE CLASS.
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As all IACS members now have the same

structural rules for tankers and bulk car-

riers, a classification society’s ability to

provide good service and innovative

solutions is more crucial than ever.

DNV’s efforts to be at the forefront are

recognised: At the Lloyd’s List Awards in

November 2005, DNV was awarded the

prize as “The best and most innovative

classification society in the Middle East

and Indian Subcontinent”. The prize

was awarded by a panel of experts who

represented all facets of the Middle East

and Indian shipping industry.

DNV SECURES MORE 
LNG SHIP ORDERS
LNG carriers are advanced ship types in

which the safety of the technological

solutions used is vital. DNV has a strong

position in this rapidly expanding mar-

ket. Qatar has prompted large new

orders for LNG vessels to cope with its

forthcoming exports. In the second

batch of orders, seven out of the 12 new

LNG mega carriers ordered in Korea

for Qatar’s Ras Gas III project will be

built to DNV class. In the previous 

year, four out of the eight mega carriers

(over 200,000 m3) were to DNV class.

Additionally, NYK in Japan ordered

three 216,000 m3 ships from Hyundai

for delivery in 2008. All these will be

built to DNV class. DNV’s increasing

competence on LNG has resulted in 

a market share of 25%.

FACILITATING PORT CLEARANCE
An innovative service that has made

work at the ship bridge a little easier 

is DNV Navigator. This computer-based

tool contains information about require-

ments related to navigation, security,

waste and ballast water reporting, and

how to report to port authorities. It in-

cludes unique checklists specific to each

port and the different report forms re-

quired by the port state authorities in

143 countries. It also contains a separate

security module that meets the record-

ing and reporting requirements of the

ISPS Code. 

DNV Navigator has won the presti-

gious Seatrade Award in the category

Innovation in Ship Operations. More

importantly, many ship masters can 

now focus a little less on filling out

forms and more on bringing the ship

safely to its destination.

DNV Maritime

EXPLORER OF THE SEAS: Royal Caribbean is a long-term customer of DNV. “We have a large and very complex fleet, but we are confident 

that by understanding the risks of our operations and by being able to take measured and calculated steps to maintain and operate the fleet, 

we have a good process going forward,” says Capt. William Wright, senior vice president of marine operations at Royal Caribbean International. 

< LYS SKOG is a DNV-classed bulk carrier trading the North Sea with paper products.

<< SEASONS IN THE SUN: From the bridge of the DNV-classed cruise ship Norwegian Sun. DNV has worked closely with the cruise industry 

since the very start, and is today a leading provider of classification services to this demanding industry.



Matching solutions 
to customer needs
Globalisation poses challenges for customers and DNV alike. Comprehending 

challenges and needs created within this environment is fundamental. 

TRANSCENDING BOUNDARIES: Globalisation and sustainability issues impose new demands on companies. Markets may expand but so does

the responsibility, not to mention stakeholder scrutiny. But critical risks can lead to opportunities if responsible solutions are successfully applied

to mitigate risks, provide transparency and build trust across the boundaries.

DNV Certification
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DNV places great emphasis on research-

ing and understanding how the certifica-

tion process can contribute to customers’

value creation and sustainability efforts.

Consequently, DNV continues to progress

as an organisation and a provider of inde-

pendent third-party services – delivering,

adjusting and developing a service offer

of solutions that help today’s companies

and organisations manage their risks in 

a proactive, sustainable way.

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
CERTIFICATION
DNV continues to be the world’s leading

company in the field of environmental

management system certification, with a

worldwide market share of about 8%. For

quality management system certification,

DNV is among the top three worldwide,

with a market share of about 6%. The

introduction of Risk Based Certification™

has been a successful differentiating fac-

tor for DNV Certification, adding signifi-

cant value in the auditing process. 

All in all, at the end of 2005 DNV

had issued more than 60,000 presently

valid accredited management system

certificates.

SPECIFIC INDUSTRIES
DNV’s focus on specific industry sectors

continues to yield good results. The food

and beverage industry is a sector of high

growth for DNV. DNV’s food safety port-

folio covers the entire value chain, pro-

viding a systematic approach to food 

safety for manufacturers and retailers and

ensuring transparency toward consumers

and other stakeholders.

In the automotive industry, an

increasing number of companies have

certified their quality management sys-

tems according to ISO/TS 16949 as

required by a growing number of auto-

motive manufacturers. The mandatory

supplier certification has contributed to

increased supply chain management and

quality for the automotive industry. Many

companies in the automotive industry are

also choosing to certify their environmen-

tal management system to ISO 14001.

In 2005, DNV introduced two new 

priority industry sectors: ICT and Energy

& Process. This underlines DNV Certi-

fication’s strategy to emphasise industry-

specific services while also continuing

our traditional management system certi-

fication service offering across all indus-

try sectors.

GLOBAL CUSTOMERS
Multi-national companies with opera-

tions worldwide are moving toward cor-

porate management processes and con-

sequently a coherent certification deliv-

ery, preferably by one single certification

body. Continued emphasis was placed on

the global customer framework for inter-

national and global customers. With its

global knowledge and skills, DNV is a

preferred partner for companies taking

a global and multi-standard approach to

management system certification. Having

built a stronger internal network for

consistent handling of global customers,

DNV will offer and further develop this

approach in 2006 and beyond.

SUSTAINABILITY SERVICES 
Throughout 2005, DNV strengthened 

its ability to support companies pushing

for sustainable operations. This under-

lines DNV’s goal of contributing to sus-

tainable development.

The extra-financial rating services

acquired in 2004 were re-structured, and

the mandated rating services were culti-

vated to focus on assignments from com-

panies. The market demand for rating

services that verify and communicate a

DNV Certification

>
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company’s ethical and sustainable per-

formance is growing. Development of

the Fraud and Corruption Resistance

Profile service was completed in 2005.

This service was added to the rating

portfolio, which also includes Corporate

Governance and Corporate Responsibility

rating. 

DNV has also experienced an

increased demand for verification of

sustainability reporting in areas where

DNV has developed its own guidelines

and Sustainability Reporting Verification

Protocol.

CLIMATE CHANGE SERVICES
DNV was the first company accredited 

by the UN Framework Convention on

Climate Change. Since then, the

accreditation for Clean Development

Mechanism projects has been expand-

ed, and additional scopes are under

consideration.

Towards the end of 2005, the UN

formally registered the first climate-

change project generated by the Kyoto

Protocol. Paving the way for an array 

of other energy projects, this Brazilian

project was validated by DNV. With

Russia’s ratification of the Kyoto Proto-

col and the introduction of the EU

Emission Trading Scheme, the market

for Climate Change services has grown.

This is expected to continue in 2006.

With a leading position in terms of 

market share, DNV is well prepared 

to meet this demand.

TRAINING
With the objective to deliver training

with impact, a strong focus was placed

on the DNV Training services in 2005,

and the service delivery increased ac-

cording to expectations. In 2005 great

emphasis was placed on harmonising

our course offering worldwide.

Globalisation also influences the value

of coherent employee training, and

DNV has worked to provide a service

offer that creates consistent value across

geographical boundaries. DNV will 

continue to develop and deliver train-

ing that creates value in today’s rapid

business environment. 

<  THE CONSUMER’S CHOICE: When consumers make their choices they must trust – and not only like – the products they buy. Their perception

is what counts. Proof that food safety is managed at every stage of the value chain is a growing demand. To respond to consumers’ growing food-

safety concerns, building trust is crucial and transparency essential.  

RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS: Sustainable opera-

tions are rewarded if clearly communicated.

Extra-financial rating is a means to provide 

a more detailed picture of how a company

performs. 

USEFUL KNOWLEDGE: The participants

must live the learning experience for train-

ing to create an impact. Only when they

put their knowledge to use can a course 

be deemed successful. 

THE KEY TO SUCCESS: Pressure is on in the

automotive industry to produce better-quality

cars at lower cost. To survive this high-speed

race, one has to outperform the competi-

tion, a manoeuvre that demands robust and

managed processes at every stage.

DNV Certification
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DNV Technology Services

However, technology does not always

work. This is why DNV Technology

Services combines a risk-based approach

with cutting-edge technology knowledge

to provide solutions for the oil, gas,

process and energy industries. This is a

sector that cannot survive without safe,

reliable and efficient technology that

outlasts its tasks. 

In line with this strategy, DNV Tech-

nology Services has had a special focus

on liquefied natural gas (LNG), deep-

water technology and pipelines. Based

on the increasing activity levels in these

fields, DNV Technology Services’ strate-

gy seems to be well aligned with the

industry’s needs. 

High oil prices throughout the year

had a profound impact on the activities

in the oil and gas industries. Projects

that were previously considered too

expensive now became attractive.

However, new acreage is always less

accessible. New and unknown territories

may be marred by political instability,

while deep waters or Arctic conditions

put up technological barriers.

As a side effect, more accessible but

mature areas have become very attrac-

tive. In the North Sea, well-established

oil majors and new operators are going

to further lengths to get the most out

of discovered reserves and tail-end 

production.

DNV Technology Services has there-

fore increased its activities in the North

Sea while continuing to grow inter-

nationally, particularly in Brazil, China,

India and Russia. It has also learned

some hard lessons. In Angola, the oper-

ations were downsized following a too

optimistic build-up phase.

DNV Technology Services’ revenues

grew in 2005, and an increasing number

of reputable companies and regulators

adopted DNV’s rules, technical stan-

dards and guidelines as best industry

practices.

The following examples illustrate how

DNV’s scientific and risk-based approach-

es help push technology boundaries

while ensuring safe operations. 

QUALIFICATION OF NEW 
TECHNOLOGY
Through extensive research and close

cooperation with the industry, DNV has

developed a recommended practice

called DNV-RP-A203 Qualification

Procedures for New Technology. This 

is a systematic approach to provide evi-

dence that new technology will function

within specific limits with an acceptable

level of confidence. 

In the LNG field, it is vital to prove

the safety and reliability of innovative

solutions in order to reap the benefits

of this energy resource. Locating LNG

facilities near populated areas has been

a concern and moving LNG facilities

offshore is one possible solution.

Floating terminals can be fabricated

rapidly and they are naturally flexible

with regard to localisation. 

A vital factor for the success of these

terminals is safe and reliable cargo

transfer between the floating terminal

and the LNG carrier when operating 

in open seas. Several new technological

solutions have been proposed, but the

lack of experience in using these novel

solutions is a critical risk. 

Among the proposed technological

solutions is the work carried out through

a joint industry project, called the

Amplitude LNG Loading System. This

project involves Technip, Gaz de France,

Enabling technology to work

In 2005, high oil prices encouraged companies to apply innovative solutions to demanding

high-risk projects. DNV Technology Services has targeted its efforts to help the industry put

the right technology to work. Whether it has been tried and tested for 30 years or recently

invented, the technology still needs to work.

<  NEW TECHNOLOGY NEEDED: The world needs ever more energy, pushing exploration and production activities to new and increasingly diffi-

cult areas. The extreme weather conditions in the environmentally sensitive Arctic areas demand innovative solutions and robust technology.
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REALITY CHECK IN THE LAB: In 2005, DNV Technology Services’ revenues grew on the back of solutions that met customers’ needs for qualification

of technology, verification of projects and assets, offshore classification and integrity management of assets during the operations phase.

DNV Technology Services
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A WATCHFUL EYE: Charles McHardy inspects the DNV-classed rig Songa Mercur in the port

of Galveston, Texas.

DNV Technology Services

KSB and Eurodim as co-contractors.

Members of this joint industry project

include a multinational group of major

operators, LNG shipping companies

and engineering companies. DNV is

delivering a traceable and transparent

qualification record to document the

service fitness of the new transfer system

according to DNV’s recommended

practice.

GOING DEEPER IN WEST AFRICA
In West Africa, the French oil major

Total is the operator of several techni-

cally challenging deepwater-field devel-

opment projects. Total has awarded

DNV the contract for verification and

qualification of riser systems, flowlines,

and loading buoy and subsea systems.

Dalia, a Total project, is pushing

back the frontiers of deepwater technol-

ogy in Angola. For the first time ever,

integrated production bundle technol-

ogy was used on the eight flexible risers

that bring up the viscous oil from the

field. These risers make it possible to

monitor the behaviour of the field in

real time, to inject gas to facilitate the

production of oil and to ensure a prop-

er flow of oil as it is brought up.

OVERCOMING A MID-LIFE CRISIS
Mature technology and old installations

are still valuable assets, particularly

those located in the North Sea. On the

Ekofisk field, the installations were ini-

tially designed to last for 30 years and,

now that this period is over, the Ekofisk

field is capable of keeping the flow

going for another 30 years.

DNV is helping ConocoPhillips to

document the structural integrity of its

platforms for extended operation. DNV

is reanalysing all Ekofisk platforms for

the latest environmental loads, topside

weights and subsidence data. Increased

water depth caused by subsidence on

the Ekofisk field is a risk since extreme

waves are expected to hit the platform

deck structures in the future. DNV

therefore uses advanced computer tools

to calculate the load effects of the

extreme waves. Other software tools

have been developed by DNV to help

ConocoPhillips manage the structural

integrity of the Ekofisk structures for

another golden 30 years.

SECURING ONSHORE PIPELINES 
IN NORTH AMERICA
Ageing pipelines are increasingly

becoming a safety and performance

concern. The oldest and most extensive

onshore pipeline networks are located

in North America. Accidents in the US

within the past decade have led to

extensive and demanding regulations.

Seeking to increase its presence in this

changing landscape, DNV acquired CC

Technologies in 2005. This is one of the

leading independent corrosion research

companies in this area and a key contrib-

utor to the industry’s onshore pipeline

integrity standards. This acquisition sig-

nificantly adds to DNV’s North America

presence, providing an additional 125

staff.

RUST BUSTERS: CC Technologies inspects

pipeline networks. The company was

acquired by DNV in February 2005.



DNV Consulting

DEMONSTRATING EFFECTIVE CONTROL: As the nuclear industry moves through the transition phase from generation to decommissioning,

nuclear power stations see their risk profiles change. There is a need for increased management control of their facilities whilst simultaneously

dealing with the attention from the media, owners, customers and the authorities. DNV Consulting assists the nuclear industry with the estab-

lishment, improvement and demonstration of effective control and management systems. 



2005 was a year of growth and expansion

into new areas and services. DNV Con-

sulting delivered client solutions and

financial results in accordance with

strategic goals. With an ambition to safely

and responsibly improve business per-

formance, DNV Consulting has worked

closely with clients in its primary market

sectors – upstream, process, transporta-

tion and general industries*. The main

service areas include enterprise risk man-

agement, safety, health and environmen-

tal risk management, asset risk manage-

ment, and systems and software risk

management.

DEVELOPING AND DELIVERING 
NEW CAPABILITIES
Renewal of services is key to successful-

ly delivering solutions that add value

and satisfy client’s business drivers.

DNV Consulting regularly reviews its

service portfolio, and adjusts existing

services based on market demand and

trends. The increased awareness of

Corporate Social Responsibility, corpo-

rate governance, and the implications

of the Sarbanes Oxley Act are examples

of market drivers. Very much at the

core of the DNV Consulting strategy is

to deliver new and existing services at a

higher level in the client’s organisation,

resulting in more impact and greater

value.

FORECASTING PERFORMANCE 
In January 2005, DNV acquired Jardine

and Associates, a UK-based leading

provider of performance and asset opti-

misation consultancy services. Following

this, DNV Consulting expanded its per-

formance forecasting business, includ-

ing security of supply services. Perform-

ance forecasting services are being deliv-

ered to the oil, gas and process indus-

tries, as well as to the rail industry. For

example, DNV Consulting is helping the

UK’s Network Rail company in its fore-

cast work, and in conducting perform-

ance forecasting analyses to predict and

measure railway system level reliability.

DEMONSTRATING BUSINESS 
PERFORMANCE 
The need for demonstrating excellence

in safety performance and the link to

improved business performance contin-

ues to advance. Safety, health and envi-

ronmental excellence is critical to busi-

ness survival and progress, but on its

own it is not sufficient to enhance busi-

ness performance and ensure success.

DNV Consulting, through cooperation

with DNV Certification, developed isrs7,

a world-leading system for measuring,

improving and demonstrating health,

safety, environmental and business per-

formance. isrs7 services have been deliv-

ered to clients in the utilities, oil, gas

and process industries. Demand for the

service is expected to continue through-

out 2006 and beyond. 

MAXIMISING THE UPSIDE OF RISK
DNV Consulting’s Enterprise Risk

Management Survey 2005, conducted

with top managers (CEOs, MDs and

CFOs) of oil and gas operators and

licence holders in Norway, identified

focus areas for the further implementa-

tion of enterprise risk management on

the Norwegian continental shelf. The

survey has also been instrumental in

shaping DNV Consulting’s enterprise

risk management service offering. 

The survey shows that value creation

through improved decisions is the

prime reason for undertaking enter-

prise risk management – not pure com-

pliance. However, half of those inter-

viewed revealed that they were dissatis-

fied with the implementation of risk

management, and many of the respon-

dents confirmed that their focus was on

avoiding mistakes. This presents oppor-

tunities to highlight that risk manage-

ment is not merely a loss prevention or

defensive strategy, but is also a means 

of capturing and maximising upside

opportunities through controlled risk

taking.

Responsibly driving
performance improvements

Integrating business risk and technical competence, DNV Consulting helps clients to develop

and implement safe and responsible solutions that improve business performance. 

DNV Consulting
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* General industries is a grouping of market segments including ICT, food and beverage, utilities, public sector, banking and space.



INCREASED DEMAND FOR 
RISK BASED SERVICES
Other business developments include

risk based security management for 

the transportation industry to meet 

increased security demands, risk based

asset valuation for the LNG industry,

and technical and commercial due 

diligence services for the upstream 

oil and gas industry. 

Existing safety, health and environ-

mental risk management services were

also in demand. Within aviation DNV 

is now increasingly recognised, through

several high-profile projects, in Europe

and Norway. There has also been growth

within utilities and IT risk management,

two strategically important areas for

DNV.

GROWTH WITHIN IT RISK
MANAGEMENT
DNV has systematically built a founda-

tion of knowledge and experience with-

in IT that stemmed from extensive use

of IT systems, as well as close coopera-

tion with customers and partners in

multiple IT-intensive projects. DNV

Consulting has an active, growing and

profitable IT risk management service.

To bolster this service, DNV acquired

Tireno Innovations, a provider of IT

management services based in

Hamburg, Germany, in December 2005.

This move strengthens DNV’s ability to

help companies optimise their business

processes in a cost-efficient manner. In

addition, DNV Consulting has identi-

fied IT risk management companies in

Germany, Benelux and the UK and will

pursue an acquisition strategy into 2006

to grow the IT business.

DNV Consulting

RISK ASSESSMENT FOR DnB NOR: 

DNV Consulting assisted DnB NOR, Norway’s

largest bank, with a risk assessment to ensure

the success of its Basel II compliance pro-

gramme. Basel II is a comprehensive set of

new regulatory requirements for international

banking. DNV Consulting provided the project

leadership with a solid foundation for guiding

the programme, as well as early warning signs

of which activities would affect achieving pro-

ject completion on time and within budget.

ASSISTING OIL SANDS DEVELOPMENT: The oil sands deposits in Alberta, Canada are an abundant source of hydrocarbon fuels for the

North American market. Bitumen is extracted from the oil sands via open cast mining, and refined to produce gasoline and diesel derivatives. 

DNV Consulting has been assisting four out of the five major developments in the area with asset risk management services, performance

forecasting and risk-based inspection advice. 



DNV Consulting

SAFE JOURNEY: DNV Consulting developed a quantitative risk analysis model for aircraft departures and landings in cooperation with Avinor,

owner and operator of 46 airports in Norway. The model deals with aircraft approach, landing and departure. It takes a number of operational

parameters into consideration, such as weather, terrain, obstacles, skills, aircraft, equipment, navigation and visual aids.



Research to revenue

While 2004 was a year spent commemorating a solid 50 years of in-house research, 2005 was firmly

centred on the future and creating value. DNV Research has solid commercial aspirations and work

closely with the business areas. Commercialisation can lift a fledgling idea into a fully realised busi-

ness venture with a positive impact on an industry’s performance, a ship’s construction, a laboratory’s

safety routines, or a worker’s safety. 

DNV’s research department constitutes the core of DNV’s

technological base. By building on competence, the engineers

in DNV Research develop new ideas and explore the elusive

potentials on the boundaries of known technology. Research

has been a do-or-die proposition for DNV in the past. Now,

research can best be described as long-term business develop-

ment. This is reflected in the goal of the department, which is:

“Acquiring new knowledge to create value for DNV and our

clients”. 

To pursue this goal, 2005 saw DNV Research implement a

business model for research. This means they begin with the

right business questions, such as value proposition, market and

business potential, internal value chains and competitor posi-

tion. Then, as the answers materialise, the process is guided 

in the right direction. This approach is already encouraging

DNV’s business areas to take early ownership of research proj-

ects, and through this the chances of succeeding commercially

are improved.

SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS
DNV’s core competence of risk management is reflected in

the research programmes, which cover maritime transport,

energy and water resources, biorisk, multifunctional materials

and surfaces, and organisations of the future, and the syner-

gies between them. Here are some projects that highlight

these efforts.

BIORISK
The management of biosafety and biosecurity have become a

vital issue, especially in light of the laboratory-acquired cases

of SARS in Singapore and Taiwan in 2004. This is particularly

true for operators of biological containment laboratories han-

dling dangerous bacteria and viruses, such as anthrax, ebola

and avian flu. 

Currently there is no internationally recognised standard

which identifies the management system requirements needed

to ensure that the people, facilities and working procedures

adequately address biological risk in the laboratory.

Consequently, in 2005 DNV Research initiated a project to

explore the need for such a standard by different laboratory

stakeholders, and then to develop and promote the adoption

of such a standard.

STEEL/CONCRETE SANDWICH FOR SHIP HULLS
Stronger, lighter, and cheaper: sandwich structures of steel

and lightweight concrete may revolutionise shipbuilding in 

a few years. Also other floating units could reap significant

advantages from the technology. Conceived by Dr Pål G.

Bergan in DNV Research about five years ago, the concept 

has been further developed in a strategic research project in

co-operation with Aker Yards ASA. The project is currently 

in a phase of further testing and qualification, and practical

application could come within the year.

CLEAN ENERGY
DNV is well suited to be a leading provider of the risk-manage-

ment expertise required for a smooth introduction of hydro-

gen as an energy carrier in the public domain. DNV has the

competence required to develop and provide a range of services

related to:

n Certification of hydrogen equipment and systems

n Assistance related to approval of hydrogen vehicles 

and refuelling stations

n Risk management and risk assessments

n Qualification of new technologies.

Other clean-energy projects include the capture and permanent

safe storage of carbon-dioxide gas in geological reservoirs, a

strategy termed carbon capture and storage. In another joint

industry project focusing on fuel cell technology for maritime

use, DNV is contributing to making such units more reliable.

DNV Research

30 DNV ANNUAL REPORT 2005

DEADLY VIRUS, VITAL SAFETY: Biosafety and biosecurity are vital for laboratories handling dangerous bacteria and viruses such as anthrax,

SARS, ebola and avian flu. DNV Research has initiated a project to develop an internationally recognised standard that will address biorisk

in laboratories.
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To manage risk, 
press ENTER

DNV’s commercial software house, DNV Software, last year

delivered on a long-term ambition; a new-generation software

directly improving engineering quality and productivity, there-

by lowering production costs. From being stand-alone applica-

tions, the software has now become an alternative way for DNV

to share best-engineering practice, experience and knowledge

with customers.

DNV began using software and computers for strength

analysis in the late 1950s. This especially covered the design

and construction of large tankers, which in a decade grew from

60,000 dwt to 300,000 dwt. Today, the information and knowl-

edge needed for a project have made a similar leap in size, 

creating a need for a consistent and streamlined work process.

DNV’s software for the maritime, offshore and process

industries now offers solutions for improved interaction be-

tween people, integration of ICT systems, and provides tem-

plates for work processes. No longer a collection of individual

tools, the software contains the knowledge and experience of

DNV with regard to design, engineering, risk assessment, asset

management, and more.

For example, the DNV rules for ship engineering is part of

the software. A customer can check directly in the application

whether a new ship design is in accordance with the standards

or not. Unique support for the new IACS Common Structural

Rules for double-hull oil tankers and bulk carriers, which came

into effect on 1 April 2006, is now included in the Nauticus

Hull software.

DESIGN WORK PROCESSES
The new tool for work processes, called Brix Workflow

Manager, enables companies to effectively manage people,

applications, and production information. As the work pro-

cesses follow a template, benchmarking between different

processes is finally made possible. It is also possible to design

customer work processes into the system, which ensures pre-

dictability from start to finish. 

NAUTICUS PRODUCTION SYSTEM
A milestone for DNV Software was the launch of Nauticus

Production System (NPS) version 5.0. This is the very core 

of DNV’s classification services. The Nauticus family includes

many products, such as Nauticus Hull for strength analysis. 

A new product in this family, Nauticus Early Design, is 

a combined Computer Assisted Drawing (CAD) and analysis

tool for ship building, based on the use of 3D ship-modelling

technology. The technological 3D advances is the result of

DNV’s ten-year co-operation with the CAD market leader

Intergraph.

LIFE-CYCLE SOFTWARE FOR EKOFISK
DNV’s software has played a part in the design of almost all

structures on the Ekofisk field in the North Sea. Now, 30 years

after the deployment of the first platforms, these ageing giants

are being carefully maintained to meet challenges like a sink-

ing seabed and general wear and tear. One of the largest 

contracts for DNV Software in 2005 was to develop an asset

integrity management system for ConocoPhillips together 

with DNV Technology Services. The work is currently ongoing,

deploying DNV’s Field Life Cycle Manager, a structural

integrity management system, to all the 48 platforms on the

greater Ekofisk field. Final delivery will take place at the end

of 2006.

DNV Software
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DNV Software shares risk management expertise and best engineering practices through its soft-

ware. In 2005 the DNV Software also integrated powerful work process software into the portfolio.



Extending the scope 
of managing risk
People, systems and software are the areas where efforts to manage risk are most likely to have

the greatest effect. This is why DNV is targeting these areas, with particular attention to how they

all interact.

DNV provides a wide range of services aimed at helping com-

panies and authorities to manage the risks associated with

competence, knowledge, systems and software. In the future,

DNV expects these services to be an integral and significant

part of most of the solutions and services it delivers. The 

following is an overview of the services that have significant

growth potential. 

TRAINING WITH IMPACT 
Through DNV’s extensive experience with management sys-

tem certification, one lesson is clear: systems and processes

alone are not enough. A company’s individuals must con-

tribute. When systems are properly understood and accepted,

they work well. But it all starts with the people.

Risk management requires that people apply their skills and

knowledge to daily tasks, challenges and situations. A telling

example is anti-fraud and corruption guidelines. When caught

in a potentially compromising situation, an individual’s choice

in that split second is typically guided more by personal princi-

ples and knowledge than by a written instruction. In such a 

situation, prior training can truly make an impact. 

All systems, processes and guidelines are put to action by

people. DNV Training therefore works hard to deliver courses

that connect mind-set, knowledge and skills that can create

value for a company. The courses must be relevant to the 

customers’ real-life challenges, and the methods interactive,

case-based and engaging. The goal is to create knowledge

they can use; thereby empowering individuals to become risk

managers in their own work. 

PEOPLE FIT FOR PURPOSE
DNV has a long tradition of declaring vessels fit for purpose.

Human factors, however, are as important as steel thicknesses

and technology. Up to 90% of all accidents are related to

human error. DNV therefore works hard to find solutions 

that address this appropriately. DNV has dedicated resources

working on human-factor issues, particularly those related to

the energy and maritime industries.

For the maritime industry, DNV SeaSkill offers standards, tests

and certification services related to competence development.

These services are aimed at organisations and individuals con-

nected to shipowners, management companies, cargo owners,

yards, suppliers, maritime training centres and maritime

authorities. 

PLAN, TRAIN, CERTIFY
DNV SeaSkill deals with all aspects of competence: from a

company’s need to plan and map its competence needs and

how to meet these needs, via the certification of educational

institutions and training programmes to independent tests 

of individuals’ competence.

Competence Management Certification is a service for ship-

owners, yards and authorities. It focuses on the ability of an

organisation to plan, define, develop and improve the compe-

tence of its employees according to external requirements and

defined business goals. 

DNV SeaSkill also certifies training programmes. This 

certification is available to academies and training providers 

as the basis for developing training courses and programmes.

Along with competence management and quality training,

it is necessary to independently test and verify the competence

of individuals in relation to specific jobs or positions. DNV

SeaSkill offers the industry the necessary tools and expertise 

to evaluate the competence of individuals. 

MANAGING RISKS RELATING TO SYSTEMS AND SOFTWARE
The extensive use of software has improved systems’ function-

ality and business efficiency, but has also introduced a signifi-

cant risk factor. The malfunction of IT systems may lead to 

catastrophic events, critical business consequences or severe

information security leaks, putting trust and credibility at risk.

DNV provides services called “Managing Risk of Systems

and Software” which aim to manage safety and business risks,

such as information security, through the evaluation and

improvement of electronic systems, software products and 

software processes.       

Corporate focus areas
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DNV’s risk based approach to business management issues is

unique and differentiates DNV from regular IT consultants.

Initial target industries include the ICT, public and finance

sectors.

INCREASED COMPLEXITY AND NEW TESTING METHODS
Modern maritime machinery plants are constructed by inte-

grating several computerised control systems and sub-systems.

These systems are often delivered by many different suppliers,

resulting in increased complexity and systems which may not

work well together. This has not been sufficiently followed up

by the industry by development of effective quality assurance

measures. It has also resulted in traditional test methods lag-

ging behind the technology progress.

This situation has created a need for improved comprehen-

sive testing of complex machinery systems. As a response to

this challenge, DNV has developed a new certification regime

for Hardware-In-the-Loop testing of complex marine control

and monitoring systems in cooperation with Marine

Cybernetics and other Norwegian industry partners. The

Hardware-In-the-Loop testing technology delivered by Marine

Cybernetics is based on a simulation technology already

applied in the automotive, aviation and space industries.

IT MANAGEMENT 
In December 2005, DNV bought Tireno Innovations AG.

Established in 2000 and based in Hamburg, Germany, Tireno

has a broad IT management service portfolio, working in sec-

tors such as telecommunications, media, retail, banking,

finance, transportation and utilities. Tireno Innovations has 14

full-time employees and 12 full-time equivalent sub-contractors.

Tireno’s and DNV’s services are complementary for devel-

oping and implementing IT processes and systems to optimise

customer business processes in a cost-efficient manner with

the required business continuity and reliability. Tireno forms 

a strong platform on which to build the future services DNV

will offer in Germany. These services will also be based on

DNV’s software-related services offered by Q-Labs.

SOFTWARE PROCESS IMPROVEMENT
Q-Labs is a software process improvement company with 120

employees in France, Germany, Sweden, the UK and the USA.

DNV owns 66% of the shares and has an option to buy the rest.

Q-Labs is an important part of DNV’s IT risk management

services and leading the CMMI-based market in Europe. 

Q-Labs’ key markets are the automotive, finance, telecom,

defence and aerospace industries. Customers include General

Motors Europe, BNP Paribas, Alcatel, Autoliv, IKEA, Volkswagen,

Schneider Electric and EADS.

eSIGNATURES
eBusiness makes information security a critical business issue.

Managing the confidentiality, integrity and availability of infor-

mation is vital, as is knowing the identity of the people and

organisations with which one is interacting.

Digital certificates for electronic identity and electronic 

signatures are necessary tools in this respect, helping realise

the potential of digitalised business processes in terms of effec-

tiveness and reduced cost.

DNV is taking the role as an international certificate

Validation Authority (clearing house) offering third party trust

services to enable effective use of eID certificates and digital

signatures. These services allow customers to securely conduct

business electronically with any party, whether or not business

relations already exist with the party, and independent of that

party’s choice of eID provider.  

The Validation Authority services will reduce cost and com-

plexity in implementing eID certificates and digital signatures,

enable interoperability between different certificates, and

effectively manage business risks.

INFORMATION QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
DNV’s customers need to maintain an increasing amount of

information and data related to their assets and processes.

Estimates indicate that the information handling costs 

during the life cycle of an offshore installation are equal to the

installation’s construction cost. For instance, if an oil rig costs

USD 1 billion to build, the data management work during the

planning, design, building and operational phases costs the

same amount. Improving the information quality by standard-

ising, indexing and managing the data can significantly reduce

these costs, not to mention the improvement in the overview

picture and the management and safety of the rig.

SPEAKING THE SAME LANGUAGE
Data quality is vital, particularly when it comes to integrated

operations. The new IT infrastructure in the North Sea allows

more offshore facilities to be controlled remotely via comput-

ers. In this way, oil and gas reserves can be explored and

analysed and production increased, using the best available

expertise. However, such integrated operations mean that

every asset and tool involved must speak the same language. 

DNV INVOLVED IN SETTING THE STANDARDS
DNV has contributed to the development of ISO standards in

this field, namely the ISO 15926 Integration of life cycle infor-

mation for process plants including oil and gas facilities, and

ISO 10303-239 Products Life Cycle Support for the defence

and aerospace industries.

TOWER OF BABEL: The data management work during the planning, design, building and operational phases of an oil rig costs approxi-

mately the same amount as building it. Ensuring all data speak the same language through improving the information quality by standard-

ising, indexing and managing the data can significantly reduce these costs. Not to mention the improvement in the overview picture, man-

agement and safety of the rig.
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To attract and retain talent

Human Resources
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DNV is continuously searching for good people, and is stepping

up its efforts to attract and retain talent. For instance, DNV

Maritime is running a broad recruitment campaign to meet

its goal of hiring as many as 400 people in the next few years.

While searching for the best, it is also vital to have good prac-

tices in place that let current employees develop in their work.

DNV uses its strengths as a large international company to

provide opportunities for international assignments, challeng-

ing project responsibilities and a vibrant internal job market.

All employees working in DNV are encouraged to actively

work with their professional, technical and personal develop-

ment, supported by DNV’s competence, training and develop-

ment programmes. 

INTERNATIONAL TRAINEE PROGRAMMES
Trainee programmes have proven to be both popular and

effective. DNV has recruited trainees for three decades now,

and many of the current leaders in DNV started as trainees.

DNV Maritime, DNV Technology Services and DNV Corporate

all ran trainee programmes in 2005. More than ever, the

international aspect of the trainee programmes is being

emphasised. In 2005, there were more than 30 trainees in

DNV originating from 15 different countries.

Trainee candidates must be mobile and prepared to spend

up to two years working outside of their home country.

Important learning benefits are gained from working and 

living abroad. The current trainees themselves state that the

many opportunities within DNV concerning geographical 

and job-related mobility are among the main reasons why 

they joined DNV.

INDIVIDUAL DEVELOPMENT
As individual development of all employees is a key focus 

area, DNV strives to continuously improve the quality of the

Managing Individual Performance (MIP) process. The MIP

process has been established to structure the dialogue between

manager and employee, and it involves goal setting, ongoing

coaching, a half-year review, and a year-end assessment of per-

formance and development needs. Through the MIP process,

the employee and the manager agree on how development

plans and strategic goals can be transformed to actions within

a given time frame. 

Both managers and employees are trained to get the most

out of this process. The MIP course for managers is mandato-

ry for all line managers in DNV, and 548 managers have

undergone this training globally. An interactive online MIP

course is also available to all employees, and more than 1,000

employees have completed this so far.

In addition the business areas have competence develop-

ment programmes for different career paths, such as project 

manager, consultant or technical specialist.

DEVELOPING LEADERS
DNV cooperates with the leading international business schools

IMD and INSEAD, contributing a fresh and internationally

recognised approach to leadership. DNV’s global manager

development programme, The Journey, consists of two clearly

defined levels with different goals – Port 1 and 2. 

The first level of The Journey aims to develop new and

potential managers, emphasising consistent values, business

Human Resources

DNV is dependent on its employees and their expertise. At the same time, there is a global fight

for talent within many of the fields in which DNV operates. As DNV’s strategy is to grow, this

means that active recruitment is necessary, as well as good initiatives to develop and retain 

current staff.
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< DNV USES ITS STRENGTHS as a big international company to provide opportunities for international assignments, challenging project

responsibilities, and a vibrant internal job market. 
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awareness and attitudes to the most common management chal-

lenges in DNV. Nearly 900 employees have completed Port 1.

The second level intends to develop managers for senior

leadership positions in DNV, based on an introduction to glob-

al management subjects which broaden general management

expertise and add to leadership development. More than 150

managers have completed Port 2. Of the 949 persons who

have participated in Port 1 and 2, 154 are women. The share

of women participating is steadily increasing.

Since the fall of 2005 DNV has started a process of expand-

ing the content of The Journey, in response to an increased

need for management competence within subjects like manag-

ing cross-cultural teams, better understanding of Corporate

Social Responsibility (CSR), and competence and diversity

management.

Ensuring effective and smooth succession of senior man-

agers is a key strategic issue for the Executive Board. DNV

focuses on developing internal manager talents for key man-

agement positions, and succession plans and individual devel-

opment plans for possible successors shall be in place. 

DIVERSITY
To release the entire potential within the organisation, diversity

in terms of nationalities and gender must be continually in

focus. Current initiatives are aimed at increasing the number of

female managers, as well as the number of local managers versus

expatriate managers in countries where there is an imbalance.

DNV has employees from 81 nationalities, with 56 different

nationalities of managers. 62% of the managers are non-

Scandinavian, compared with 56% last year. Two of the

Executive Board members are British, two are Danish and 

six are Norwegian. There are two non-Norwegians on the

Board of Directors.

The ratio of female employees increased from 30.5% in

2004 to 32.4% in 2005. 13.4% of DNV’s managers are women,

up from 11.9% in 2004. There is one woman on the Executive

Board, three on the Board of Directors, and seven of the 40

Council members are women.

Several actions were implemented in 2005 as part of a cor-

porate gender diversity project. An international mentoring

programme for female technical managers, with senior man-

agers as mentors, was successfully established in June 2005. 

An evaluation of the programme half way through the period

indicates that the participants have already benefited substan-

tially from the programme. 

In late 2005, Corporate Human Resources developed 

an electronic survey which will be sent to several hundred

employees in early 2006. The purpose of the survey is to 

establish a knowledge base showing the number of employees

with managerial or technical career ambitions in DNV. In

addition, there will be a particular focus on what employees

see as opportunities and barriers related to pursuing a techni-

cal or management career.

Human Resources
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NATIONALITIES: The 16 countries most of DNV´s employees originate from. There are 1833 employees from Norway.

EXPATRIATES: There are expatriates in 30 countries. These are the top 14, showing the percentage of staff who are expatriates in each country.
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Safety, Health, and the Environment

Identifying, assessing and
managing SHE risks
DNV employees carry out their work in many different environments, from offices to production

plants, offshore installations and shipyards. Some of these environments pose potential risks to

our employees, and we work continually to reduce such risks to acceptable levels.

>
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A Safety, Health, and Environment (SHE) risk assessment has

been performed at a corporate level. The objective was to iden-

tify, analyse and manage SHE hazards to ensure that risks are

reduced to a level acceptable to DNV.

The SHE risk assessment is now being conducted through-

out the organisation. At a country level, the corporate SHE

risk assessment is adapted to the local work environment and 

prevailing conditions. A local action plan is developed based

on the outcome of the adapted risk assessment.

To enable all DNV employees to share experience and

knowledge efficiently, DNV uses its own software called

EasyRisk Manager. This is a multi-user web-based application

that provides an overview of the current risk picture and

actions in progress at a country and corporate level. 

As a follow-up to the risk assessment, more attention is 

now paid to psychosocial problems, stress and burn-out.

PERSONNEL SAFETY ON SITE
Personnel safety is DNV’s number one priority. DNV employees

are exposed to various working conditions around the world. 

A wide range of tools, systems and initiatives are used to contin-

uously improve DNV’s SHE performance. DNV’s procedures

are always combined with safety awareness raising activities. 

As a follow up to the risk assessment, the personal safety

instructions were updated with a focus on improved proce-

dures for safe entry to confined spaces, drill floor safety and

protection against asbestos. Oxygen or multi-gas meters are

now standard personal protection equipment for all DNV

employees working onboard ships, at offshore installations, 

at industry sites and anywhere else they may be exposed to

hazardous conditions.

TRAINING AND KNOWLEDGE SHARING
Safety training is a part of DNV’s general training programme

and is supported by e-learning courses. A new safety training

course with a combination of theoretical and practical training

is being developed and will be implemented in 2006.

Hazards and near accidents are usually ideal awareness-rais-

ing issues, but only a few people benefit from this experience

if the information is not shared. SHE issues based on reported

incidents are presented during most of the so-called experience

exchange seminars held for surveyors to improve their safety

awareness. Experience exchange seminars are well-established

forums for all kinds of information sharing in DNV and are

therefore an appropriate forum for SHE issues.

Since 2004, SHE e-learning courses have been available to 

all employees on DNV’s intranet. In 2005 new courses were

added to bring the total number of courses offered to 35.

These courses are attended by individuals and groups. It is a

considerable advantage to use e-learning in such a widespread

international organisation as DNV. E-learning minimises travel,

is cost efficient, and is available to the employees at any time.

An e-learning user survey revealed that 89% of the respondents

regard e-learning as a good method for SHE training.

HAZARD AND INCIDENT REPORTING
DNV has established a global web-based system for reporting

accidents, near accidents, occupational health issues and haz-

DNV’s SHE framework aims to provide a safe and inspiring working environment in which there is mutual trust

between colleagues, and efforts are made to improve the safety culture and encourage the employee’s environmental

awareness.

Safety, health, and the environment is the framework for ensuring positive people in a successful company through:

n caring for our employees’ physical, mental and social well-being

n ensuring the safety of our employees and safeguarding our manufacturing process and property

n establishing environmental awareness in relation to DNV’s services.

SHE PERFORMANCE IN DNV

Safety, Health, and the Environment

LTA3.7

SAI

SAR

2.8 2.3

65.4 37.6 32.8

2.6 2.2 2.3

2003 2004 2005

• LTA – Lost Time Accident frequency 
(number of lost time accidents/ million hours worked)

• SAI – Severity Accident Index 
(number of days off work due to injury per million
hours worked)

• SAR – Sickness Absence Rate
(sickness absence/number of hours worked *100)

DNV’S SHE FRAMEWORK
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ardous conditions. In 2005, 355 incidents were reported – 305 of

these have been followed up and closed while 50 are in progress.

The number of incidents reported increased by 57% com-

pared to 2004. The increase in the number of incidents

reported is due to the implementation of web-based report-

ing and improved knowledge of the reporting requirements

among employees. No fatal accidents were reported.

TRAVELLING
In order to increase employees’ safety while travelling, an

information system has been established to identify and

inform about areas exposed to diseases, terrorism, political

unrest or natural disasters. Three categories of restrictions

have been established; “no go”, “essential travel only” and

“special awareness” countries or areas. Any decision to travel

must be agreed to by both the employee and her/his line

manager. In all cases, an employee’s decision not to go to 

a restricted travel area will be fully respected by DNV.

WASTE HANDLING
Being a service provider, DNV’s operations have limited envi-

ronmental impact. Global surveys covering five DNV offices

(Høvik, Rio de Janeiro, London, Singapore and Houston), 

covering approximately 46% of DNV’s employees, have been

conducted in order to map recycling and waste handling and

achieve continuous improvements in these areas.

DNV Petroleum Services’ laboratories reported 138 tons of

hazardous waste in 2005, of which 99% were delivered to

waste-handling facilities approved by the authorities. The

remaining 1%, equal to 0.98 tons/year, consisted of oil that

was burned off.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION
The average energy consumption per person in the selected

DNV offices was 15,000 kWh in 2005, and 11% of this is renew-

able energy produced by a heat pump at Høvik (13% in 2004).

When hydro power is included, the renewable energy amounts

to 77% (75% in 2004).

23%

11%

66%

ENERGY USE 2005

kg CO2/ kg NO2/ kg SO2/
Source person/year person/year person/year

From internal boiler 293 0.25 0.39

From external power plant 3,394 2.72 4.85

Hydro power
Non-renewable energy
Renewable energy exclusive
hydro power



Ensuring sustainable
business

Corporate Social Responsibility 
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THE UN GLOBAL COMPACT is an international initiative, launched by Kofi Annan in 2000, that calls on business leaders to join with UN agencies,

labour, NGOs and other civil society actors in the pursuit of good corporate citizenship. By signing the Global Compact, DNV has officially

expressed the intent to support and advance the core principles within its sphere of influence. 



Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of

DNV’s business culture and reflected in its management sys-

tem. During 2005 the action plan 2003–2005 was completed

and a plan for the next three-year period was adopted, con-

centrating on four key areas:

n Governance and business ethics

n Human resources and SHE

n Training and awareness raising

n Monitoring and reporting

Training of staff and global implementation of CSR principles

continued in 2005. Dilemma training has been carried out in

the regions with the aim of coming up with guidelines for the

day-to-day handling of difficult situations.

An example of the practical application of the principles

for business ethics is DNV’s corporate instructions for political

and cultural risk assessments when establishing business in

new countries. These instructions were introduced in 2004,

and they were applied last year as it was decided to open

offices in Libya and Kazakhstan. DNV gained experience and

further refined the instructions, which give guidance on how

to deal with issues such as:

n Health, safety and security

n The political situation

n Human rights

n Corruption/extortion/transparency

The Ombudsman scheme, introduced in 2004, has proven to

be a useful channel for employees. Many of the contacts made

to the Ombudsman are related to Human Resource manage-

ment and have been passed on accordingly. Other contacts

have been concerned with ethical dilemmas on which the

Ombudsman has given advice.

To extend CSR principles beyond the internal operations

of DNV, preparations were made throughout 2005 to evaluate

the current practice of DNV with regard to control of its 

suppliers, contractors and subcontractors. Existing guidelines

primarily pay attention to quality and cost, but aspects such as

ethics and environmental impact of suppliers of goods and

services are now to be considered as well. The familiarisation

of DNV’s suppliers, contractors and subcontractors with rele-

vant instructions and guidelines will continue in 2006.

DNV is actively involved in several national and international

initiatives that focus on sustainable development and the role

of business in society, principally:

n UN Global Compact

n World Business Council for Sustainable Development

n Global Reporting Initiative

During 2005 DNV put particular emphasis on anti-corruption

through awareness raising and dilemma training both internally

and externally. A seminar was organised for managing direc-

tors in several of the largest companies in Norway to discuss

legal risk management in international business, with particular

focus on corruption issues.

The World Business Council for Sustainable Development

is a coalition of 165 international companies that share com-

mitment to sustainable development, promoting the role of

eco-efficiency, innovation and corporate social responsibility.

DNV has been a member since 1999, and is an active partici-

pant contributing to projects such as the international green-

house gas protocol and the corporate standard for reporting

greenhouse gas emissions.

DNV is organisational stakeholder of the Global Reporting

Initiative, and this annual report is inspired by the guidelines

of the Global Reporting Initiative.

PARTNERSHIP WITH THE RED CROSS
Through DNV’s corporate partnership with the Red Cross,

DNV works to make a difference in many of the countries

where it has a presence. An emergency water module was put

into operation in Banda Aceh in 2005, where DNV’s water

expert Marte Ness spent several months working with the

Norwegian Red Cross. DNV also contributed an additional

NOK 1.5 million to the tsunami victims through the Red Cross.

In order to involve employees throughout the organisation,

regional offices have been encouraged to initiate projects. 

On the World Water Day on 22 March 2005, a Water for Life

campaign was started at DNV’s head office to collect donations 

to the Kajiado project in Kenya. In China, DNV has supported 

a local water project run by the Red Cross. 

Corporate Social Responsibility 
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DNV’S PARTNERSHIP WITH THE RED CROSS

n As part of DNV’s CSR effort, a partnership has been established

with the Red Cross. 

n In addition to financial support, DNV contributes with in-kind 

services and expertise.

n Focusing on access to clean water, the partnership covers the 

development of Emergency Response Water Modules for the 

effective use of ground water in emergency situations. 

n DNV has financed the water component of a Red Cross 

water and sanitation project in Kenya. 

The three-year action plan which was introduced in 2003 has now been completed, and DNV 

has gathered useful experience in practical Corporate Social Responsibility. An new action plan 

for the period 2005-2008 is now being implemented.
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THE COUNCIL

Chairman
Westye Høegh, Oslo

Vice Chairman
Gunvor Ulstein, Ulsteinvik

Honorary member
Erik F. Lorentzen, Oslo

Members appointed by 
Norwegian Shipowners Association
Terje J.K. Andersen, Ålesund
Elisabeth Grieg, Oslo
Herbjørn Hansson, Sandefjord
Trond Harald Klaveness, Oslo
Garup Meidell, Oslo
Anne Jorunn Møkster, Stavanger
Anette S. Olsen, Oslo
Ingar Skaug, Oslo

Member appointed by 
Federation of Mutual Marine
Insurance Clubs
Knut Misje, Bergen

Members appointed by 
Norwegian Oil Industry Forum
Arne Austreid, Tananger
Trond Erik Johansen, Tananger
Johan Nic. Vold, Tananger
Per Terje Vold, Stavanger
Erling Øverland, Stavanger

Members appointed by
Central Association of Marine
Underwriters
Bjørn Eidem, Oslo
Bjørn Hildan, Oslo
Claes Isacson, Arendal
Douglas Jacobsohn, Oslo
Gunnar Rogstad, Oslo
Georg Scheel, Oslo
Trygve Seglem, Haugesund

Members appointed by
Confederation of Norwegian
Business and Industry
Finn Bergesen Jr., Oslo
Inge J. Hansen, Oslo
Jan Erik Korssjøen, Kongsberg
Jens Ulltveit-Moe, Oslo

Members Other Shipping
Peter Anker, Oslo
Dan Sten Olsson, Gothenburg

Members appointed by The Council
Jon Fredrik Baksaas, Oslo
Klaus Kjærulff, Denmark
Tore Torvund, Oslo
Birgit Aagaard-Svendsen, Copenhagen
Svein Aaser, Oslo

Members appointed by and from 
Det Norske Veritas’ employees
Marit Sætre Cruickshanks
Andreas Falck
Trude C. Helgesen
Leif Gulbrandsen
Odd Sund
Per-Arne Waløen

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman
Atle Bergshaven

Vice Chairman
Caroline Maury Devine

Members
Tom Ruud
John H. Wiik
Axel C. Eitzen
Mary Grace Anderson
Audun Brandsæter
Unni Marsteinstredet Aagedal
Knut Vågnes

THE CONTROL COMMITTEE

Chairman
Erling Øverland

Members
Georg Scheel
Herbjørn Hansson

THE ELECTION COMMITTEE

Chairman
Westye Høegh

Members
Elisabeth Grieg
Ingar Skaug
Johan Nic. Vold
Jon Fredrik Baksaas

THE NORDIC COMMITTEE 
FOR SAFETY AT SEA

Chairman
Göran Hammarberg

Secretary
Wilhelm Magelssen, 
Det Norske Veritas AS

DENMARK
Per Bardenfleth-Hansen, 
Scantec Marine Consult
Christian Breinholt, Søfartsstyrelsen
Carl-Erik Egeberg, Man B & W Diesel A/S
Niels Chr. Engbjerg, Carl Bro A/S
Valdemar Ehlers, DFDS A/S
Mogens Fynbo, 
Dampskibsselskabet Torm A/S
Jeppe Guld, TrygVesta
Óli Hans Hammer Olsen, 
Faroes Maritime Authority
Frede Kristiansen, DFDS A/S
Lars Lundegaard, DS Norden
Hans Henrik Petersen, 
Danmarks Rederiforening
Preben Terndrup Pedersen, 
Danmarks Tekniske Universitet
Tommy Thomassen, A.P. Møller
Capt. Claus Thornberg, TESMA

FINLAND
Juhani Ahonius, Finstaship Oy/Ab
Bo-Erik Blomqvist, Aker Finnyards
Christer Bruzelius, 
Finnlines Ship Management
Bengt Engblom, Rederi AB Engship
Kaj Eriksson, OY Rettig AB Bore
Björn G. Fagerström, 
Fortum Oil and Gas Oy
Kaj Viking Jansson, Viking Line AB
Marcus Lindfors, Lundqvist Rederierna
Leif Nordlund, Alandia-Bolagen
Erik Skogström, Aker Finnyards OY
Petri Varsta, 
Helsinki University of Technology
Paavo Wihuri, Sjöfartsverket

SWEDEN
Bertil Andersson, Laurin Maritime AB
Stig Bystedt (Honorary Member)
Per Croner, Walleniusrederierna AB
Johan Fransson, Sjöfartsverket
Sten G. F. Göthberg, The Swedish
Association of Marine Underwriters
Göran Hammarberg
Roger Karlsson, Marinvest
Örjan Larsson, B & N Nordsjöfrakt AB
Jan Eric Nilsson, Rederi AB Gotland
Harry Robertsson, Stena Rederi AB
Olle Rutgersson, Chalmers Lindholmen
Peter Stenberg, 
Broström Ship Management AB
Peter Stålberg, The Swedish Club
Anders Ulfvarson, 
Chalmers Tekn. Høgskola

ICELAND
Olafur J. Briem, 
Icelandic Shipowners’ Association

NORWAY
Leif A. Andersen, Bergesen d.y. ASA
Knut L. Arnesen, 
Barber Ship Management
Karl Johan Bakken, Farstad Shipping ASA
Jan Berntzen, 
Kristian Gerhard Jebsen Skipsrederi A/S
Erik Bratvold, Norsk Sjømannsforbund
Kåre Breivik, Statoil ASA
Bjørn Degerud, 
Det Norske Maskinistforbund
Torstein Dehn, 
Nordic Maritime Services AS
Tore Forsmo, CEFOR
Lars Gathe, Elkem ASA
Terje Gløersen, Norges Rederiforbund
Hans Richard Hansen, 
IUM Shipmanagement AS
Nils Chr. Høy-Petersen, 
Torvald Klaveness & Co. AS
Bjørn Haave, Norsk Sjøoffisersforbund
Rolf Kjær, Color Line Marine ASA
Steinar S. Kulen, Kleven Maritime AS
Henrik Lian, Jahre-Wallem AS
Jan D. Lorentz, Odfjell ASA
Torgeir Moan, 
Inst. For Marine Konstruksjoner, NTNU
Niels C. Møller, AS Borgestad
Dragos Rauta, Intertanko
Geir Sekkesæther, 
Wilhelmsen Marine Services
Nils Sjökvist, Frontline Management AS
Oscar Spieler, Frontline Management AS
Lars Stärk, Aker Brevik AS
Henry Svendsen, Billabong A/S
Trond Svensen, Wilhelmsen Lines AS
Rune Teisrud, Sjøfartsdirektoratet
Lars Traaseth, Saga Forest Carriers Intl. AS
Tore Ulstein, 
Ulstein Mekaniske Verksted Holding ASA
Even Ulving, V-Ships Norway AS
Oddvar Aam, Marintek A/S
Yngvil Åsheim, Høegh Fleet Services AS

THE RIG OWNERS’ COMMITTEE

Chairman
Charles Keaton, GlobalSantaFe

Members
Alan Quintero, Atwood Oceanics, Inc.
Joe Glass, CalDive International
Yang Yexin, China Oilfield Services Ltd.
Li Jizha, China Oilfield Services Ltd.
Anders Tegelstrøm, Cotemar
John Vecchio, 
Diamond Offshore Drilling Inc.
Reidar Pedersen, 
Fred. Olsen Marine Services AS
Ola Often, Fred. Olsen Energy ASA
Gregers Kudsk, Mærsk Contractors
Arun Pushkarna, 
National Drilling Co., UAE
Jim Gormanson, 
Noble Drilling Services Inc.
Frank Tollefsen, Ocean Rig AS
Ketil Lenning, Odfjell Drilling AS
Gustavo Adolfo Villela de Castro,
Petrobras Brasileiro SA
Helge Krafft, PGS Production AS
Eiliv Johannessen, Polycrest
Pierre Ferran, Pride International
Ian Young, Prosafe Offshore Ltd.
Bob Shetti, Rowan Companies, Inc.
Sergio Polito, Saipem Spa
Henning Taranger, SeaDrill Ltd.
Kåre Syvertsen, Sevan Marine ASA
Einar Bekkevold, Smedvig Offshore A/S
Tom Kennedy, Stena Drilling
Tore Berg, Thule Drilling ASA
Paul Tranter, Transocean
Siggi Ludwig, Workfox BV
Svein Flogeland, DNV (Secretary)

THE GERMAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
Thomas Rehder, Carsten Rehder
Schiffsmakler u. Reederei GmbH & Co.

Members
Nikolaus W. Schües, 
Reederei F. Laeisz GmbH
Jürgen Kennemann, 
Aker MTW Werft GmbH
Ian Beveridge, 
Bernhard Schulte GmbH & Co. KG
Dr. Klaus Borgschulte, Blohm+Voss GmbH
Jan-Wilhelm Schuchmann, 
Bugsier-, Reederei- & Bergungsgesellschaft
mbH & Co.
Albert Schumacher, 
E.R. Schiffahrt GmbH & Cie.
Tom Jacob, Ernst Jacob (GmbH & Co. KG)
Fred Garbe, Flensburger Schiffbau-
Gesellschaft mbH & Co. KG
Frank Jungmann, German Tanker
Shipping GmbH & Co.
Peter Harren, Harren & Partner 
Ship Management GmbH & Co. KG
Klaus F. Bunnemann, 
Hermann Dauelsberg GmbH & Co.
Lambert Kruse, 
Jos. L. Meyer GmbH & Co. Schiffswerft
Roland F. Höger, Komrowski
Befrachtungskontor KG (GmbH & Co.)
Werner Lüken, 
Lloyd Werft Bremerhaven GmbH
Jürgen Wehr, 
Oskar Wehr KG (GmbH & Co.)
Christian Fritzen, 
Peter Döhle Schiffahrts-KG
Peter Rybarczyk, Reederei “Nord” 
Klaus E. Oldendorff GmbH
Bernd Peterson, Reederei Hans Peterson 
& Söhne GmbH & Co. KG
Stefan Patjens, 
Reederei Stefan Patjens e.K.

THE GREEK COMMITTEE

Chairman
Christos Kanellakis, 
Alpha Tankers & Freighters Int.

Vice Chairmen
Stathes J. Kulukundis, 
Rethymnis & Kulukundis Ltd.
Theodoros Veniamis, 
Golden Union Shipping Co. S.A.

Members
Nicolas A. Pappadakis, 
A.G. Pappadakis & Co. Ltd.
John Angelicoussis, Kristen Navigation Inc.
Nicos I. Manias, 
Arcadia Shipmanagement Co. Ltd.
Nicolas H. Vafias, 
Brave Maritime Corporation Inc.
Adamantios Lemos, 
Ceres Hellenic Shipping Enterpr. Ltd.
Anastasios Papagiannopoulos, 
Common Progress Compania Naviera S.A.
John Coustas, Danaos Shipping Co. Ltd.
George Procopiou, 
Dynamic Tankers Management Ltd.
Spyros Karnessis, 
Elka Shipping (London) Ltd.
Andonis Lemos, Enesel S.A.
Victor Restis, 
Enterprises Shipping & Trading S.A.
Michael C. Phostiropoulos, 
Fairsky Shipping & Trading S.A.
Ghassan R. Ghandour, 
Gulf Marine Management S.A.
Michael Nicholas Papaioannou, 
Helikon Shipping Enterprises
Dimitri Dragazis, John Latsis (London) Ltd.
Andreas Martinos, Minerva Marine Inc.
Ulysses Perantzakis, 
Naftomar Shipping & Trading Co.
Melina Travlos, Neptune Lines Shipping 
& Management Enterprises S.A.
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Spyros M. Polemis, 
Seacrest Shipping Co. Ltd.
Vassilis Laliotis, 
Seaworld Management & Trading Inc.
Alexander Kedros, 
Southern Shipping & Finance Co. Ltd.
George Gratsos, 
Standard Bulk Transport Corp.
Genie Adrianopoulos, 
Tropis Shipping Co. Ltd.
Nikolas P. Tsakos, 
Tsakos Shipping & Trading S.A.
Anthony Paul Palios, 
Victoria Steamship Co. Ltd.
Ioannis Kourmatzis, DNV (Secretary)

THE INDIAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
K.M. Sheth, 
The Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd.

Members
D.T. Joseph, 
Ministry of Shipping, Government of India
G.S. Sahni, 
Directorate General of Shipping
Ashok V. Chowgule, 
Chowgule and Co. Ltd.
A. Mehta, Varun Shipping Co. Ltd.
S. Mehta, Essar Shipping Ltd.
H.K. Mittal, Mercator Lines Ltd.
S.S. Rangnekar, 
The Shipping Corporation of India Ltd.
R.L. Pai, Reliance Petrochemicals Ltd.
Rishi Agarwal, ABG Shipyard Ltd.
A. Qadir, West Asia Maritime Ltd.
M. Jitendran, Cochin Shipyard Ltd.
Ajit Tewari, Hindustan Shipyard Ltd.
S. Madhan, Good Earth Maritime Ltd.
Rohet Tolani, Tolani Bulk Carriers Ltd.

THE IRANIAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
Souri, National Iranian Tanker Co. (NITC)

Members
A. Taheri Motlagh, 
Ports & Shipping Org. (P.S.O.)
S.M. Momeni, 
Ports & Shipping Org. (P.S.O.)
Estiri, Ports & Shipping Org. (P.S.O.)
Ghaderi, Ports & Shipping Org. (P.S.O.)
Abbasnejad, Ports & Shipping Org. (P.S.O.)
J. Mayahi, 
National Iranian Tanker Co. (NITC)
Taghizadeh, 
National Iranian Tanker Co. (NITC)
Dadjmar, Islamic Republic of Iran 
Shipping Lines (IRISL)
Moghadamifard, Islamic Republic of Iran
Shipping Lines (IRISL)
Saifollahi, Bonyad Shipping Co.
J. Khalili, Khazar Shipping Co.
Bagheri, Irano Hind Shipping Co.
Keshavarzi, 
IRISL Marine Engineering Services
Khobreh, 
Iran Marine Industrial Co. (SADRA)
Khooban, 
Iran Marine Industrial Co. (SADRA)
Najmi Mahabadi, ISOICO
Saeedi, Valfajr Shipping Co.
Nayeri, Tavous Beheshti Kish Co.
Capt. Keyvani, 
Qeshm Bonyad Ship Management

THE KOREAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
Jang, Won Gab, STX Corporation

Honorary Chairman
Wang, Sang Eun, 
Pan Continental Shipping Co., Ltd.

Members
Carl-Johan Hagman, 
EUKOR Car Carriers Inc.
Noh, Jeong Ik, 
Hyundai Merchant Marine Co., Ltd.
Jang, Hak Se, Korea Line Corporation
Lee, Jeong Hwa, SK Shipping Co., Ltd.

Hwang, Sung Hyuk, Hwang & Co.
Jung, Sung Leep, Daewoo Shipbuilding 
& Marine Engineering Co., Ltd.
Hong, Soon Ick, Hanjin Heavy Industries 
& Construction Co., Ltd.
Choi, Kil Seon, 
Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
Lee, Youn Jae, 
Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
Song, Jae Byoung, 
Hyundai Mipo Dockyard Co., Ltd.
Kang, Soo Hyun, 
Hyundai Samho Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
Kim, Jing Wan, 
Samsung Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
Sohn, Pan Doo, 
Shin A Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
Kim, Sung Ki, STX Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.

THE NORTH AMERICAN
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Graham Westgarth, 
Teekay Marine Services

Vice Chairman
Harri Kulovaara, 
Royal Caribbean International

Members
Mel J. Dennett, 
Admanthos Shipping Agency, Inc.
Jordan Truchan, 
American Ship Management
Steven Ho, 
Fairmont Shipping (Canada) Ltd.
Fred G. Hansen, Fednav Ltd.
John P. Tavlarios, 
General Maritime Corporation
William O. Gray, Gray Maritime
Per Heidenreich, Heidenreich Marine Inc.
Tom Ward, 
International Marine Consultants Ltd.
Michael Wilson, 
Laurin Maritime (America) Inc.
Paul D. Sclavounos, 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Stephen Carmel, Maersk Line, Ltd.
Colin Veitch, Norwegian Cruise Line
Cameron Mackey, OMI Corporation
John C. A. Koo, 
Orient Steamship (Canada) Co., Ltd.
George Jennings, PLM TEC
Peter Curtis, Seaspan Ship Management
Thomas H. Gilmour, 
United States Coast Guard

THE SOUTH AMERICAN
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Erling S. Lorentzen, 
Lorentzen Empreendimentos S/A, 
Rio de Janeiro

Members
Carlos Alberto Carpanelli, 
Antares Naviera, Buenos Aires
Juan Carlos Lopez Mena, 
BUQUEBUS, Buenos Aires
Eliezer Batista da Silva, 
FIRJAN, Rio de Janeiro
Reinaldo Conrad, São Paulo
Ozíres Silva, HELTTER Assessoria
Empresarial Ltd.a, São Paulo
Haakon Lorentzen, Lorentzen
Empreendimentos S/A, Rio de Janeiro
João Carlos França de Luca, 
Repsol YPF, Rio de Janeiro
Tay Kim Hock, 
KEPPEL FELS Brasil, Rio de Janeiro
Ariovaldo Rocha, Sinaval, Rio de Janeiro
Sven Von Appen, Ultramar, Santiago

THE SOUTH EAST ASIAN
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Chiau Beng Choo, 
Keppel Offshore & Marine Ltd., Singapore

Members
Robertus Sumantri, Altus Shipping and
Logistics Pte Ltd., Singapore
Peter Chew, IMC PAA Pte Ltd., Singapore
Joseph Kwok, American Eagle Tankers 
Inc. Ltd., Singapore
Trevor Smith, BW Shipping Managers 
Pte Ltd., Singapore
John Bruce Rae-Smith, 
Swire Pacific Offshore Ltd., Singapore
Ragnar Nielsen, 
Masterbulk Pte Ltd., Singapore
Nik Mohd Zain, Nepline Berhad, Malaysia
Ahmad Sufian (Dato), 
Essem Holdings (M) Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia
Azhar Abbas Shamsul (Dato), 
MISC Bhd, Malaysia
Nils-Goran Nordh, 
Star Cruise Sdn Bhd, Malaysia
Sumate Tanthuwanit, Regional Container
Lines Public Co. Ltd., Thailand

THE PIPELINE COMMITTEE

Chairman
Ed Vermeulen, Consultant

Members
Marit Engedal Andreassen, Statoil
Bjorn Kvaal Hjermann, Norsk Hydro
Jens Erik Thygessen, DONG
Michael Crawford, BP
S Poddubskiy, GAZPROM
Patricia Lespinasse, TotalFinaElf
Tim Crome, Technip
Ken Nilsson, Subsea7
Massimo Pulici, Saipem
Ralph Brevet, Allseas Engineering bv
Peter Tait, Corus
Andreas Liessem, Europipe
Frederico Tintori, Tenaris
Ulrike Zeislmar, VM Tubes
Takahura Sasaki, JFE Steel
John Lawson, Chevron Texaco
Colin McKinnon, JP Kenny
Per Richard Nystrom, ABB
Meyrick Hadfield, HSE
Helge Vestre, Ptil
Leif Collberg, DNV
Kjell Einar Eriksson, DNV
Elisabeth Torstad, DNV (Secretary)

THE HIGH SPEED LIGHT CRAFT 
& FAST FERRY COMMITTEE

Chairman
Håkan Enlund, Aker Finnyards Oy, Finland

Ex-officio Member
Olav Nortun, DNV Høvik, Norway

AUSTRALIA, N.Z. & OCEANIA
Robert Clifford, INCAT Australia, Australia
John Szeto, 
AMD Marine Consulting, Australia/China
Michael Grainger, 
Liferaft Systems Australia
Ian Graham, 
Interisland Line / TOLL Shipping, Australia

CHINA, JAPAN & KOREA
Taketsune Matsumura, 
Mitsui Eng. & Shipbuilding Co. Ltd., Japan
David Wong, First Ferry, Hong Kong
Young Ryeol Joo, 
Samsung Heavy Ind. Co. Ltd., Korea

SOUTH EAST ASIA
Ramon G. Villordon, 
Supercat Fast Ferry Corp., Philippines

SOUTH EUROPE
Tommaso Micangeli, Fincantieri, Italy
Alexander P. Panagopulos, 
Superfast Ferries S.A., Greece
Oner Cem Oktay, 
Istanbul Deniz Otobusleri, Turkey
Francesco Visimberga, 
V.Ships Leisure S.A.M., Monaco

CENTRAL EUROPE
John Geldard, 
Sea Containers Services Ltd., UK

Mike Simpson, 
Hart, Fenton & Company Ltd., UK
Wolfgang Bühr, 
Flensburger Schiffbau, Germany
Christoph Krackhardt, 
MAN B&W Diesel Ltd, UK
Wilco van der Linden, 
Wärtsilä Propulsion Netherlands B.V.

NORDIC & BALTIC
Rolf Kjær, Color Line Marine AS, Norway
Harry Robertsson, 
Stena Rederi AB, Sweden
Kjartan Stensønes, Fjellstrand, Norway
Håkan Enlund, Aker Finnyards Oy, Finland
Stefan Gordin, 
Marioff Corporation Oy, Finland

AMERICA & CANADA
C. Mitchell McLean, 
Bay Ferries Ltd., Canada
Trafford Taylor, 
Manta Nautical Corp., Canada

OBSERVER
Len Roueche, INTERFERRY, Canada

SECRETARY
Karl Morten Wiklund, DNV Høvik, Norway
Hilde Smedal Thunes, DNV Høvik, Norway

THE NAVAL SURFACE CRAFT
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Chairman
Jan Henrik Eriksen, DNV Norway

Vice Chairman
Marnix Krikke, Royal Netherlands Navy

Members
Rijo Carola, Portuguese Navy
Torstein Krabbedal, 
Norwegian Defence Material Agency
Klaus Sørensen, NMC Denmark
Lee Kok Leong, 
Republic of Singapore Navy
George Filmalter, South African Navy
Mikael Wendel, Royal Swedish Navy
Guy Gibbons, UK MOD
Peter Majumdar, 
U.S. Office of Naval Research
Yannick Anne, 
Ministry of Defence/DGA, France
Michael Mechanicos, 
Royal Australian Navy
Sergio Simone, Italian Navy
Jean-Paul Marcel, The Belgian Navy
Marc Vicaire, Direction des Constructions
Navales, France
Stefano Ferraris, Fincantieri, Italy
Chris A. Hicks, 
Northrop Grumman Ship Systems, USA
Francisco Vilchez, Navantia, Spain
Nick Pattison, VT Shipbuilding, UK
Emídio Veloso, Arsenal do Alfeite, Portugal
Klaus Bruckmann, 
ThyssenKrupp Marine Systems, Germany
Nere G. Skomedal, 
Umoe Mandal, Norway
John Nilsson, Kockums AB, Sweden
Ching Eng Tan, 
Singapore Technologies Marine
Robert Viergever, Royal Schelde
Shipbuilding, The Netherlands
Karl Morten Wiklund, DNV Norway
Øivin Lorentzen, DNV Norway

Secretary
Magnar Eide, DNV Norway

THE CYPRUS TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
R. Thompson, Unicom Management
Services (Cyprus) Ltd.

Vice Chairmen
Capt. L. Carrel, V. Ships Ltd.

Members
Capt. A. Cohen, Antares Shipping Co. Ltd.
E. Bucknall, 
Columbia Shipmanagement Ltd.

Council, Board of Directors, Committees
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Capt. A. Constantinou, 
Department of Merchant Shipping
N. Cleave, Dobson Fleet Management Ltd.
T. Ryan, Dobson Fleet Management Ltd.
H. Pittelkau, Hanseatic Shipping Co. Ltd.
J. Williamson, Hanseatic Shipping Co. Ltd.
Capt. J. Lissow, 
Interorient Navigation Co. Ltd.
A. Brown, Interorient Navigation Co. Ltd.
Capt. E. Adami, 
Intership Navigation Co. Ltd.
Z. Siokouros, Louis Ship Management Ltd.
Capt. J. Josephides, 
Marlow Navigation Co. Ltd.
Capt. E. Koch, Oesterreichischer Lloyd
Ship Management (Cyprus) Ltd.
J. Price, 
Reederei “Nord” Klaus E. Oldendorff Ltd.
O. Kalinin, Unicom Management Services
(Cyprus) Ltd.
Nikolaos Boussounis, DNV
Abhijit Das, DNV (Secretary)

THE GREEK TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
S. Hatzigrigoris, Kristen Navigation Inc.

Vice Chairman
C. Tseretopoulos, 
Thenamaris Ships Management Inc.

Members
N. Maroulis, 
Alpha Tankers & Freighters Int.
L. Zissimatos, 
Anangel Maritime Services Inc.
A. Xanthinakis, 
Arcadia Shipmanagement Co. Ltd.
H. Giantzikis, 
Arcadia Shipmanagement Co. Ltd.
S. Mavrelos, Barclay Shipping Ltd.
G. Poularas, Bernhard Schulte (Hellas)
G. Koliopoulos, Brave Maritime
G. Vlachos, 
Consolidated Marine Management Inc.
A. Valmas, Enesel S.A.
S. Bourboulis, 
Euronav Ship Management (Hellas) Ltd.
H. Prokopakis, Danaos Shipping Co. Ltd.
S. Tsonakis, 
Eastern Mediterranean Maritime Ltd.
G. Sarris, 
Enterprises Shipping & Trading S.A.
A. Vlassakis, European Navigation Inc.
P. Perakis, Fairsky Shipping & Trading S.A.
P. Labrinakos, General Maritime
Management (Hellas) Ltd.
C. Andreadis, 
Golden Union Shipping Co. S.A.
S. Kotronis, Gulf Marine Management SA
H. Vlachodimitris, 
Halkidon Shipping Corp.
S. Klimis, Kyklades Maritime Corporation
C. Lympritis, Laskaridis Shipping Co. Ltd.
T. Eleftheriou, 
Marine Management Services M.O.
S. Daniolos, Minerva Marine Inc.
E. Sakellaridis, 
Neptune Shipping Agencies S.A.
S. Digenis, 
Orpheus Marine Transport Corp.
M. Adamis, 
OSG Ship Management (GR) Ltd.

A. Spyrantis, Sun Enterprises Ltd.
J. Skoutas, Superfast Ferries S.A.
G. Goumopoulos, 
Top Tanker Management Inc.
Y. Drossos, Tsakos Shipping & Trading S.A.
Nikolaos Boussounis, DNV (Secretary)

THE JAPANESE TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Prof. Dr. Tetsuya Yao, Osaka University

Members
Prof. Dr. Toichi Fukasawa, 
Kanazawa Institute of Technology
Shiro Imai, Nippon Steel Corporation
Takeshi Kamada, 
Shin-Kurushima Dockyard Co., Ltd.
Saburo Kawachi, Sumitomo Heavy
Industries Marine & Engineering Co., Ltd.
Katsumi Kawaichi, 
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, Ltd., 
Nagasaki Shipyard & Machinery Works
Akira Kuramoto, Tsuneishi Corporation
Yoshitaka Maeno, 
Sanoyas Hishino Meisho Corporation
Shigehiro Mori, 
Oshima Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
Yoshiyuki Nakajima, IHI Marine United Inc.
Hideaki Naoi, 
Kawasaki Shipbuilding Corporation
Katsuyoshi Nishimura, Mitsui Engineering
& Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
Hirofumi Morikawa, Kobe Steel, Ltd.
Prof. Dr. Masahiro Toyosada, 
Kyushu University
Satoshi Yamamoto, 
Universal Shipbuilding Corporation
Prof. Masahiko Fujikubo, 
Hiroshima University

THE JAPANESE OWNERS’
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Chairman
Makoto Taniguchi, 
M.O. Ship Tech Inc., Tokyo

Members
Tsukasa Nishikawa, 
Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Tokyo
Kenji Yokota, Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Tokyo
Norio Tsutsumi, 
Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha, Ltd., Tokyo
Kuninobu Kato, 
Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha, Ltd., Tokyo
Kouichi Inoue, 
Nippon Yusen Kaisha, Tokyo
Tomoyuki Matsubara, 
Nippon Yusen Kaisha, Tokyo

THE KOREAN TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Members – Yards
S.H. Shin, STX Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
M.S. Koh, STX Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
Y.M. Lee, Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine
Engineering Co., Ltd.
D.Y. Lee, Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine
Engineering Co., Ltd.
H.S. Bong, 
Hanjin Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
T.H. Park, Hanjin Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.

C.H. Lee, 
Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
G.J. Ha, 
Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
J.M. Shim, 
Hyundai Mipo Dockyard Co., Ltd.
S.H. Hwang, 
Hyundai Mipo Dockyard Co., Ltd.
C.Y. Kim, 
Samsung Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
J.Y. Kim, 
Samsung Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
K.S. Lee, 
Samsung Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
H.S. Shim, 
Samho Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
C.J. Sung, 
Samho Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
K.Y. Chun, 
Sungdong Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
Y.H. Nam, SPP Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.
J.S. Park, Shin-A Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.

Members – DNV
S. Svarstad
S. Kildahl

THE POLISH TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Leszek Trachimowicz, 
Polish Steamship Co.

Honorary member
Prof. Jerzy Doerffer

Members
Zbigniew Karpinski, 
CTO, Ship Design and Research Centre
Bogdan Szreder, 
Euroafrica Shipping Lines sp. z o.o.
Jan Paszkowski, Gdansk Shiprepair Yard
“Remontowa” S.A.
Jacek Manczak, H. Cegielski S.A.
Wlodzimierz Miadowicz, 
Polish Baltic Shipping
Jerzy Orzechowski, Unity Line Ltd.
Tadeusz Zwierzynski, 
Szczecin Shipyard Nowa
Jerzy Wróbel, Stocznia Gdynia S.A.
Prof. Krzysztof Rosochowicz, 
Technical University of Gdansk
Prof. Tadeusz Jastrzebski, 
Technical University of Szczecin

Permanent members from DNV
Olav Nortun
John Lyng

THE GERMAN TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Prof. Dr.-Ing. Stefan Krüger, 
Technische Universität Hamburg-Harburg

Members
Andreas Amelang, 
Aker MTW Werft GmbH
Horst-Dieter Spang, Carsten Rehder
Schiffsmakler u. Reederei GmbH & Co.
Hans Huisman, 
E.R. Schiffahrt GmbH & Cie.
Paul A. Thomson, 
F.H. Bertling Reederei GmbH

Wolfgang Bühr, Flensburger Schiffbau-
Gesellschaft mbH & Co. KG
Heiko Felderhoff, Harren & Partner Ship
Management GmbH & Co. KG
Tomas Wilkendorf, Meyer Werft GmbH
Kurt Zisser, Komrowski Befrachtungs-
kontor KG (GmbH & Co.)
Stefan Bülow, Leonhardt & Blumberg
Reederei GmbH & Co. KG
Thorsten Beiler, 
Lloyd Werft Bremerhaven GmbH
Alfred Soerensen, 
Marlow Shipmanagement Deutschland
GmbH & Co. KG
Capt. M.M. Jolly, Neu Seeschiffahrt GmbH
Klaus Bruckmann, Nordseewerke GmbH
Dieter Grundmann, 
Oskar Wehr KG (GmbH & Co.)
Harald Schlotfeldt, 
Reederei F. Laeisz GmbH
Hartmut Kunst, Reederei Hans Peterson &
Söhne GmbH & Co. KG
Heino Eckerich, 
Reederei Stefan Patjens e.K.
Jörg Langkabel, DNV (Secretary)

CHINA TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

NORTH CHINA 
CHEN, Hong Sheng, COSCO, Beijing
SUN Bo, Dalian Shipbuilding Heavy
Industry Co., Ltd
HE, Rong Guang, CSSC Bohai Shipyard
Hou Zhiting, 
Sea Fortune Shipping(S) Pte.Ltd
Franco Tian, ADANI Shipping
Li Yu Ping, COSCO Dalian

CENTRAL CHINA
MA Guo Dong, Hudong-Zhonghua
Shipbuilding(Group) Co., Ltd
LU Jian Wei, 
Jiangnan Shipyard(Group) Co., Ltd
HUI Ming, Shanghai Shipyard
YE Xiao Jian, 
China Shipping (Group) Company
CHEN, Min Jun, Shanghai Waigaoqiao
Shipbuilding Co., Ltd
XU Kai, Nantong COSCO KHI Ship
Engineering Co., Ltd.
John Coffin, Graig Ship Management Ltd.
Hu An Kang, MARIC

SOUTH CHINA & TAIWAN
HAN Guang De, Guangzhou Shipyard
International Co., Ltd.
David LIU, 
Yangming Marine Transport Corporation
F.C. Chang, 
China Shipbuilding Corporation
C.K. ONG, Far Eastern Group U-Ming
Marine Transport Corporation
Li Hua, Sinotrans Shipping Ltd
Stephen Pan, 
World-Wide Shipping Agency Ltd
James S.C Tai, OOCL
Zhou Qifang, China Merchants Group Ltd
John Koo, Orient Steam Ship
Frank Ko, Parakou

ARGENTINA

Chair
Eduardo Grassetti

Members
Hugo Untersander, AACAM
Rómulo Estevarena, CPIN
Carlos Ríos, Carlos Ríos Y Asoc.
Ricardo Espinosa, ADECUA
Edgardo Devoto, DNV
Julio Martinoli, DNV (Secretary)

AUSTRALIA

Chair
Jahn Henry Lovaas, DNV

Members
Chris Winder, University of NSW
Ken Holmes, KMH Consultants
Dietrich Schulz, Aymroad Pty Ltd
Mal Beavis, Vesbia Management
Barry Lee, Tyco Industries
Bill Birch, NZ Chemical Industry Council
Yngve Amundsen, DNV

Ian Morton, DNV

BELGIUM/THE NETHERLANDS/
LUXEMBURG (BENELUX) 
AND UK

CERTIFICATION COMMITTEE 
FOR AQSC

Chair
Paul van den Heuvel

Members
Geert Vansteenkiste
Pierre H.J.H Spee
Ger Bosch
Gerrit Langelaar 
John Darby
Arthur Dransfield
Alan Calder
Douglas Milne, DNV

ADVISORY BOARDS OF THE DNV CERTIFICATION UNITS HOLDING ACCREDITATIONS FROM NATIONAL ACCREDITATION BODIES
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BRAZIL

Chair
Luiz Antônio Abbdalla de Moura

Vice Chair
Maria Antonietta Cervetto

Members
Benedito Carlos Gazzaneo
Marcelo Theoto Rocha
Mauricio Venturin, DNV (Secretary)

CHINA

Chair
Jahn Henry Lövaas, DNV

Members
Chen, Shang Qin
Chen, Ying
Li, De Ming
Ma, Aimin
Qiao, Xiang Hong
Wang, Hai Sen
Yang, Mian Mian
Zhang, Chen Fu
Zhao, Hong
Zhou, Ke

DENMARK

Chair
Jens Peter Høiseth, DNV

Members
Ole Rudkilde, Grundfos A/S
Torkil Vase, Danfoss A/S
Christian Overgård, Optiroc
Arne Remmen, Aalborg Universitet
Carsten Bøg, Grafisk Arbejdsgiverforening
Søren Hald, DNV

COE FOR TYPE APPROVALS OF WIND
TURBINES (PRODUCT CERTIFICATION
EN 45011/IEC GUIDE 65
ACCREDITATION BY RVA)

Chairman
Strange Skriver, 
Danish Wind Turbine Owners’ Association

Members
Jaap L. ´t Hooft, Senter Novem
Ole Kjær, Bonus Energy A/S
Jørgen Lemming, 
Danish Energy Agency Risø
Leo E. Jensen, Elsam Engineering A/S
Henk Kouwenhoven, NUON
John T. Olesen/Ole Sønderby, 
Vestas Wind Systems A/S
Frank A. Olsen, DONG A/S
Truels Kjær, Codan Forsikring
Henning Lütze, GE Wind Energy GmbH

DNV GLOBAL WIND ENERGY
COMMITTEE

Chair
Huub den Rooijen, Shell Wind Energy

Members
Steve Ackon, E.ON Energy UK
Georg Barton, E.ON Energy Germany
Graham Bocking, Nordex
Thorsten Fastenau, 
Plambeck Neue Energie
Peter Hauge, Siemens Wind Power
Peter Hjuler Jensen, Risø
Uffe K. Jørgensen, Elsam-Engineering
Martina Kuhlmann, Enercon
Henning Lütze, GE Wind GmbH
Finn Gunnar Nielsen, Norsk Hydro
Henrik Noppenau, Energi-E2
Ángeles Santamaria, Iberdrola SA
Tom Sexton, Marsh
Bogislaw von Langenn-Steinkeller, WPD
John T. Olesen, Vestas Wind System
Frank A. Olsen, Dong
Sven Johansen, DNV
Stein B. Jensen, DNV
Tove Feld, DNV (Secretary)

FINLAND

Chair
Anders Lindgren, DNV

Members
Markku Nieminen, Okmetic Oyj
Paavo Jerkku, Metso Paper Oy
Hannu Nilsen, UPM-Kymmene Oyj
Sakari Toivonen, UPM-Kymmene Oyj
Risto Saari, TTS Yrityspalvelu
Ilkka Tirkkonen, Kiitolinja Oy
Kimmo Haarala, DNV (Secretary)

FRANCE

Chair
Jacques Mangon, Crit Interim - RHF

Members
Alain Loppinet, SICA
Maria Le Meliner, 
Mendes & Mariz (Groupe EMA)
Raymond Nyer, RNC Conseil
Serge Roux, Mazars & Guérard
Alain Chassagne, Alstom Power
Pierre Bescond, Prospace
Jean-Louis Chemin, 
Partenaire Environnement
Josiane Creuzet, Agence de l’Eau
Francois du Fou de Kerdaniel, STIIC
Lydie Raveleau-Richet, FM Logistic
Jacques Segot, La Poste
Christine Depigny Huet, 
EDF Gaz de France
Eric Salaün, DNV

GERMANY

Chair
Dr. Peter Fratz

Members
Jens Schröder, Europipe GmbH
Frank Samuels, 
ThyssenKrupp Mannex GmbH
Norbert Manderla
Michael Marggraf, 
Shell Deutschland Oil GmbH
Ariane Iffland, 
Mannesmannröhren Mülheim GmbH
Dirk Kremkow, Renk AG

HONG KONG

Chair
Wilson Tsui, DNV

Members
Chau, Gavin
Lau, Kam Ming Chris
Lau, Karoline
Lau, Thomas
Lee, Franko
Wan, T.S.

INDIA

Chair
Neelkanta Krishna Kumar, DNV

Members
Jayanta Kumar Nanda, 
Larsen & Toubro Limited, Mumbai
Ratan Kumar Shah, 
Hindalco Industries Limited, U.P.
Subhash Nagindas Shah, 
ABB Limited, Maneja
Brij Mohan Kataria
Rajiv Khurana, 
Reckitt & Benckiser Limited, Gurgaon
Rabindra Mukhopadhyay, 
HASETRI, Rajasthan
Rashid Kadimi, Allanasons Ltd.,- 
Processed Foods Group, Mumbai
Iyer Balasubramaniam Veera Raghavan,
Perfumatics Chemicals Exports Pvt. Ltd.,
Mumbai
Bidyut Kumar Datta, Bharat Petroleum
Corporation Limited, Mumbai
Sanjay Bahl, 
Tata Consultancy Services, New Delhi
Prakash Kaoray, DNV (Secretary)

ITALY

AQSC CERTIFICATION COMMITTEE

Chair
Giovanni Florio, FS Istituto Sperimentale

Honorary Chair
Alfredo De Vito

Members
Roberto Ruggeri, ABB
Luisa Bajetta, ABI
Francesco Benedetti, AGI
Livio Antonelli, AIDIC
Gianpaolo Albertini, ALBERTINI S.p.A.
Bruno Maineri, APB
Vincenzo Nuzzolo, MBDA Italia S.p.A.
Sandro Benini, ANIE
Alessandro D’Ambrosi, ANIEM
Lorenzo Renzulli, ANMDO
Andrea Maserati, ASSINTEL (AXIOMA)
Massimo Medugno, ASSOCARTA
Roberto De Lorenzis, 
Associazione Nazionale Consulenti Lavoro
Giuseppe Rettaroli, 
FEDERAZIONE GOMMA PLASTICA
Roberto Marino, ATECAP
Marco Cattabiani, CONFETRA (Fagioli)
Antonio Gatti, 
UNICREDIT BANCA D’IMPRESA
Valtro Bolelli, 
ENI S.p.A. – Exploration & Production Div.
Alberto De Rossi, 
FEDERACCIAI (Acciaierie Venete S.p.A.)
Guido Mesolella, 
FEDERAZIONE UNION TESSILE
Probo Cecchi, FERRARI S.p.a.
Giuseppe Sassi, FINCANTIERI Cantieri
Navali Italiani S.p.a.
Alfonso De Cristofaro, FINSIEL S.p.a.
Paolo Cesco, FISE Assoambiente
Giovanni Treviso, FITA
Ennio Prandi, GRUPPO ITALIANO VINI
Alessandro Verdelli, OICE
Alfredo Buda, SPEEDLINE S.r.l.
Francesco Carraro, Telecom Italia S.p.A.
Fabio Galbiati, UNI
Antonio Truglio, UIR

AESC/ASSC CERTIFICATION
COMMITTEE

Chair
Alessandro Segale, 
Università degli Studi di Milano

Members
Laura Brida, APPA Bolzano
Ezio Dalsass, Assindustria Trento
Andrea Cini, Azienda USL n°5 Pisa
Paolo Scarso Borioli, 
FIAT PARTECIPAZIONI S.p.A.
Fabio Iraldo, IEFE - Università Bocconi
Cesare Baldini, ITALGAS S.p.A.
Sergio Malcevschi, 
Università degli Studi di Pavia
Carlo Galli, WWF Italia
Pierpaolo Masciocchi, Confcommercio

PRODUCT CERTIFICATION
COMMITTEE

Chair
Giovanni Florio, FS Istituto Sperimentale

Members
Marino Melissano, AltroCONSUMO
Mauro Rivara, Autostrada dei Fiori S.p.a.
Andrea Artoni, CONAD
Sergio Coletti, Sis Nord S.r.l.
Maria Elisabetta Guerzoni, 
Università di Bologna - DIPROVAL

JAPAN

Chair
Junji Itoh, DNV

Members
Shigeru Ueda, Japan Productivity Center
for Socio-Economic Development
Kaoru Kawabe, Kawasaki Shipbuilding
Corporation, Kobe Shipyard
Hidetoshi Hatakeyama, 
Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company Inc.
Masaaki Shimizu, 
The Furukawa Electric Co., Ltd.
Motoyoshi Makino, 
Asahi Broadcasting Corporation
Etsuko Akiba, Nippon Association of
Consumer Specialists

KOREA

Chair
Ahn, In Kyoon, DNV

Members
Cha, Keun Ho, Korea Aviation University
Oh, Boong Sup, 
Neville-Clarke Korea Co. Ltd.
Shin, Yong Ho, 
Hyundai Merchant Marine Co. Ltd.
Yoon, Seok Choon, CJ Co. Ltd.
Yang, Keun Dae, 
KMG Consultancy Co. Ltd.
Kwon, Hyuck Myun, Korea Occupational
Safety and Health Agency (KOSHA)
Choi, Woan Gyoon, EMS NGO
Choi, Chear Kyu, DNV

NORWAY

Members
Ørnulf Tvedt
Rolf E. Bjørnestad, Direktoratet for
Samfunnssikkerhet og Beredskap
Dagfinn Gedde-Dahl
Viktor Berg, Statoil
Finn H. Kristensen, Kongsberg Martime
Sverre L. Nielsen, Norsk Psykologforening
Per Ove Øyberg, DNV

SPAIN

Chair 
Luis Gutièrrez de Soto, DNV

Members
Buenaventura Guamis Lòpez, 
Universidad Autonoma de Barcelona
Luis Canada Vicinay, Vicinay Canedas
Anna Riera, Unió Catalana d’Hospitals
Josep Raduá, 
Coordinadora de Usuarios de la Sanidad
Francesc Baldrich, Grupo Bonmacor
Lars Appel, DNV (Secretary)

SWEDEN

Chair
Ann-Louise Pått

Members
Jan Forslund, HEBA Fastighets AB
Leif Trogen, Svenska Bankföreningen
Åsa Bergström, Recip AB
Anders Johnson, Naturvårdsverket
Anders Wetterling, Stora Enso Nymölla AB
Anders Wingqvist, DNV

USA

Chair
Larry Montano, 
Chevron Phillips Chemical Company LP

Members
Paul Donnelly, Baker Atlas/INTEQ
Jim Hudson, Bechtel Corporation
R.A. Maddocks, Lockhead Martin Space
Mission Systems & Services
Ted Mercer, Grant Prideco

Committees
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Management

Executive Board
Miklos Konkoly-Thege
Tor E. Svensen
Henrik O. Madsen
Iain M. Light
Elisabeth Harstad
Paul S. Campbell
Amund W. Skou
Peter Bjerager
Tom Virik
Torolf Aadnesen

Corporate Units
Paul S. Campbell, Human

Resources and Organisation
Tore Høifødt, Communications
Sven Mollekleiv, Relations and CSR
Amund W. Skou, Legal
Peter Bjerager, Technology
Torolf Aadnesen, Finance

DNV Maritime
Management Group

Tor E. Svensen, COO
Per Marius Berrefjord, Strategy and

Business Development
Jostein Furnes, Planning & Review
Wilhelm Magelssen, Marketing &

Business Relations
Olav Nortun, Technical Director &

Quality Management
Gunnar Rostad, Human Resources

& Organisation
Terje Staalstrøm, Class Policy

Regional Managers

Trond Hodne, Japan
Blaine Collins, North and South

America
Eivind Grøstad, Middle East
Ragnar E. Hansen, South East Asia

and Australia
Ioannis Kourmatzis, Southern

Europe
Svein Svarstad, Korea
Jörg Beiler, Northern Europe
Odd P. Torset, Nordic Countries
Bjørn Kj. Haugland, Greater China

Maritime Units

Espen Cramer, Maritime Solutions
Per Holmvang, DNV Petroleum

Services
Jon Rysst, Maritime Technology

and Production Centre

DNV Certification
Henrik O. Madsen, COO
Tom Backelin, Deputy COO
Patrick Adamcik, Technical
Renato Grottola, Market
Ole-Andreas Hafnor, Business

Development
Gary Shoesmith, Human Resources
Leonardo Omodeo-Zorini, Business

Excellence
Thomas Vogth-Eriksen, Finance

Regional Managers

Torger Baardseth, Northern and
Western Europe

Yehuda Dror, North and South
America

Jahn Henry Løvaas, Asia Pacific
Gaetano Trizio, Middle East,

Central and Southern Europe

DNV Consulting
Iain M. Light, COO
Lars Kjønø, Finance
Brit Edvardsen, SHE&Q
Yngvar Sjoner, Human Resources
Remi Eriksen, Service Development
Trond Øverland, Business

Development ICT

Market Sector Leaders

Hari Vamadevan, Process
Aage A. Enghaug, Transportation
Odd Andersen, General Industries
Magne Tørhaug, Oil & Gas

Regional Managers

Magne Tørhaug, Norway
Iain M. Light, United Kingdom
Dieter Hansen, Germany &

BeNeLux
Stephen Shaw, North America

DNV Technology Services
Elisabeth Harstad, COO
Jørn Lunde, Human Resources
Edvard Lysne, Finance
Harald Sønju, SHE&Q
Knut Ørbeck-Nilssen, Technology

& Knowledge Management

Regional Managers

Donald Brown, Europe and Middle
East

Craig Colby, North America and
West Africa

Einar Tore Moe, Asia Pacific
Nils Andreas Masvie, Eurasia
José Paulo Pontes, South America
Kristen Ulveseter, Nordic

Independent Business Units
Elling Rishoff, DNV Software

Senior Vice Presidents
Tom Backelin
Pål Gudmund Bergan
Paul S. Campbell
Carl Arne Carlsen
Jostein Furnes
Eivind Grøstad
Ole-Andreas Hafnor
Ragnar E. Hansen
Elisabeth Harstad
Tore Høifødt
Ioannis Kourmatzis
Iain M. Light
Henrik O. Madsen
Wilhelm Magelssen
Gunnar Rostad
Gudmundur Sigurthorsson
Amund W. Skou
Wiggo Smeby
Terje Staalstrøm

Svein Svarstad
Tor E. Svensen
Ulv Tigerstedt
Odd P. Torset
Magne Tørhaug
Tom Virik
Torolf Aadnesen

Vice Presidents
Ashok Balwani
Per Marius Berrefjord
Peter Bjerager
Nikolaos Boussounis
Einar Brubakk
Torger Baardseth
Blaine Collins
Yehuda Dror
Aage A. Enghaug
Haakon Eriksen
Luis Gutierrez de Soto
Bjørgulf Haukelid
Jan Einar Horne
Helge Kjeøy
Jan V. Koren
Kåre Kristoffersen
John Lyng
Edvard Lysne
Jahn Henry Løvaas
Sven Mollekleiv
Olav Nortun
Eric Douglas Pape
José Paulo Pontes
Elling Rishoff
Jon Rysst
Magne A. Røe
Jan Thomsen
Odd G. Tonby
Gaetano Trizio
Kristen Ulveseter
Einar O. Venold
Thomas Vogth-Eriksen
Andrew Westwood
Trond Øverland

Management teams and senior managers
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Income statement:
Operating revenue 6 697 5 957 5 762 5 743 5 813
Depreciation 136 116 116 147 128
Operating profit 695 389 459 336 590
Net financial income (expenses) 49 (52) 0 (80) (125)
Profit before tax 744 338 459 257 465
Profit for the year 479 148 308 140 314

Balance sheet:

Fixed assets 2 187 1 950 2 188 2 372 2 244
Current assets 3 435 2 685 2 381 2 009 2 297
Total assets 5 622 4 635 4 569 4 381 4 541

Equity 3 598 3 119 2 964 2 656 2 517
Provisions and long-term liabilities 437 411 485 795 783
Current liabilities 1 588 1 105 1 120 930 1 241

Cash flow items, working
capital and investments:
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 139 126 130 146 189
Working capital 1 847 1 580 1 261 1 079 1 056
Cash flow 609 291 353 280 400

Number of employees 6 095 6 236 5 989 5 799 5 599

FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Profitability:

Operating margin 10.4% 6.5% 8.0% 5.9% 10.1%
Pre tax profit margin 11.1% 5.7% 8.0% 4.5% 8.0%
Net profit margin 7.2% 2.5% 5.3% 2.4% 5.4%
Return on total assets 15.3% 9.0% 11.2% 8.7% 14.2%
Return on equity 22.1% 11.1% 16.3% 9.9% 19.7%

Liquidity:
Current ratio 2.2 2.4 2.1 2.2 1.9
Liquidity reserves 1 510 999 852 543 534
Liquidity cover 25.7% 18.3% 16.4% 10.3% 10.5%

Leverage:
Equity ratio 64.0% 67.3% 64.9% 60.6% 55.4%

KEY FIGURES (Amounts in NOK million)

DEFINITION OF RATIOS

Profitability

Operating margin: 
Operating profit x 100/
Operating revenue

Pre tax profit margin: 
Profit before tax x 100/
Operating revenue

Net profit margin: 
Profit for the year x 100/
Operating revenue

Return on total assets:
(Operating profit 
+ Financial income) x 100/
Average total assets

Return on equity:
Profit before tax x 100/
Average equity

Liquidity

Cash flow:
Profit before tax
+ Depreciation 
– Taxes payable

Current ratio:
Current assets/ 
Current liabilities

Liquidity reserves:
Cash and bank deposits 
+ Short-term financial
investments

Liquidity cover:
Liquidity reserves x 100/ 
(Total operating expenses 
– Depreciation)

Leverage

Equity ratio:
Equity x 100/ Total assets

Financial review
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DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 Note 2005 2004 2003

Operating revenue
0.0 0.0 0.0 Sales revenue 6 488.7 5 957.2 5 762.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Gain on sale of business activities 13 208.5 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Total operating revenue 3 6 697.2 5 957.2 5 762.0

Operating expenses

0.0 0.0 0.0 Payroll expenses 4,5,6 3 691.7 3 538.2 3 358.7
0.0 0.0 0.0 Depreciation 11,14 136.2 116.4 116.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Other operating expenses 2 174.2 1 913.4 1 828.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 Operating profit 695.1 389.2 459.2

Financial income and expenses
27.9 10.8 22.9 Financial income 54.0 27.1 42.3
(0.5) (0.9) (9.9) Financial expenses (5.2) (78.6) (42.4)

27.4 9.9 13.0 Net financial income (expenses) 7 48.8 (51.5) (0.1)

27.4 9.9 13.0 Profit before tax 743.9 337.7 459.1

(8.2) (14.6) (8.2) Tax expense 9 (265.2) (190.2) (151.5)

19.2 (4.7) 4.8 Profit (loss) for the year 478.7 147.5 307.6

Of this minority interests 2.2 1.7 0.0
Of this majority interests 476.5 145.8 307.6

Financial review

INCOME STATEMENT 1 January – 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)
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Financial review

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 ASSETS Note 2005 2004 2003

Fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets
4.4 6.1 14.7 Deferred tax assets 9 120.5 114.6 151.7
0.0 0.0 0.0 Goodwill 11 102.8 0.0 0.0

4.4 6.1 14.7 Total intangible fixed assets 223.3 114.6 151.7

Tangible fixed assets
6.7 6.7 6.7 Land, buildings and other property 909.2 901.7 897.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 253.9 256.2 266.5

6.7 6.7 6.7 Total tangible fixed assets 14 1 163.1 1 157.9 1 163.6

Financial fixed assets
240.0 240.0 240.0 Investments in subsidiaries 2 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Investments in associates 12 20.0 0.0 43.3
3.2 3.8 7.3 Long-term shareholdings 15 20.0 15.0 19.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 Prepaid pension 6 520.9 492.0 610.6
0.3 0.3 0.3 Other long-term receivables 16 240.2 170.8 199.0

243.5 244.1 247.6 Total financial fixed assets 801.1 677.8 872.2

254.6 256.9 269.0 Total fixed assets 2 187.5 1 950.3 2 187.5

Current assets
Debtors

0.0 0.0 0.0 Trade debtors 1 364.5 1 196.5 1 136.4
0.0 0.0 0.0 Work in progress 414.0 343.2 321.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 Other debtors 146.6 145.7 119.3

0.0 0.0 0.0 Total debtors 1 925.1 1 685.4 1 576.8

390.1 25.0 0.0 Short-term financial investments 632.7 25.0 0.0

5.2 348.3 365.2 Cash and bank deposits 17 877.0 973.9 804.6

395.3 373.3 365.2 Total current assets 3 434.8 2 684.3 2 381.4

649.9 630.2 634.2 TOTAL ASSETS 5 622.3 4 634.6 4 568.9

BALANCE SHEET as per 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)
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DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 2005 2004 2003

Equity
Paid-in capital

283.5 283.5 283.5 Foundation capital 283.5 283.5 283.5

Retained earnings
341.1 321.9 326.6 Other equity 3 302.8 2 826.3 2 680.5

0.0 0.0 0.0 Minority interests 11.4 9.2 0.0

624.6 605.4 610.1 Total equity 20 3 597.7 3 119.0 2 964.0

Liabilities
Provisions

0.0 0.0 0.0 Pension liabilities 6 298.0 299.2 310.6
0.0 0.0 0.0 Deferred tax 9 9.6 14.3 24.2

16.8 16.8 16.7 Other provisions 129.4 97.2 149.7

16.8 16.8 16.7 Total provisions 437.0 410.7 484.5

Current liabilities
0.0 0.0 0.0 Overdrafts 0.5 0.0 7.8
0.0 0.1 0.1 Trade creditors 178.9 147.5 139.9
6.5 6.1 5.3 Tax payable 201.3 92.5 101.6
0.0 0.0 0.1 Public duties payable 195.4 204.9 167.7
2.0 1.8 1.9 Other short-term liabilities 1 011.5 660.0 703.4
8.5 8.0 7.4 Total current liabilities 1 587.6 1 104.9 1 120.4

25.3 24.8 24.1 Total liabilities 2 024.6 1 515.6 1 604.9

649.9 630.2 634.2 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5 622.3 4 634.6 4 568.9

Financial review

BALANCE SHEET as per 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)

AUDUN BRANDSÆTER

JOHN H. WIIK

ATLE BERGSHAVEN
Chairman

AXEL C. EITZENC. MAURY DEVINEMARY GRACE ANDERSEN

KNUT VÅGNES UNNI M. AAGEDAL

MIKLOS KONKOLY-THEGE

President and Chief Executive Officer

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DET NORSKE VERTIAS
Høvik, 20 April 2006

TOM RUUD
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DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

27.4 9.9 13.0 Profit before tax 743.9 337.7 459.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 Gain/loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (4.4) (13.8) (89.1)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Gain on divestments (208.5) 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Depreciation 136.2 116.4 116.0

(6.5) (6.1) (5.3) Tax payable (270.6) (163.0) (221.7)
Change in work in progress, trade

0.0 0.0 12.4 debtors and trade creditors (250.6) (74.6) (122.8)
0.5 0.8 (1.7) Change in other accruals 392.3 50.6 432.3

21.4 4.6 18.4 Net cash flow from operations 538.3 253.3 573.8

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENTS
0.0 0.0 0.0 Acquisitions (121.3) 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Divestments 216.6 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Investments in tangible fixed assets (139.1) (125.6) (129.7)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Sale of tangible fixed assets (sales value) 28.3 23.1 174.7
0.0 0.0 0.0 Currency effects on tangible fixed assets (6.4) 3.7 (15.7)
0.6 3.5 38.2 Change in other investments (6.1) 47.6 (1.8)

0.6 3.5 38.2 Net cash flow from investments (28.0) (51.2) 27.5

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL

TRANSACTIONS
0.0 0.0 0.0 Change in overdrafts 0.5 (7.8) 5.7
0.0 0.0 (280.0) Repayment of debt 0.0 0.0 (344.9)

0.0 0.0 (280.0) Net cash flow from capital transactions 0.5 (7.8) (339.2)

LIQUIDITY
21.4 4.6 18.4 Net cash flow from operations 538.3 253.3 573.8
0.6 3.5 38.2 Net cash flow from investments (28.0) (51.2) 27.5
0.0 0.0 (280.0) Net cash flow from capital transactions 0.5 (7.8) (339.2)

22.0 8.1 (223.4) Net change in liquidity during the year 510.8 194.3 262.1

373.3 365.2 588.6 Liquidity at 1 January 998.9 804.6 542.5

395.3 373.3 365.2 Liquidity at 31 December 1 509.7 998.9 804.6

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 1 January – 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)
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1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with the Norwegian Accounting Act of 1998 and accounting

principles generally accepted in Norway.

CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES
The consolidated statements include DNV Foundation and all

companies in which DNV Foundation directly or indirectly has

actual control. The group accounts show Det Norske Veritas’

consolidated income statement, balance sheet and statement of

cash flow as a single economic entity. Subsidiaries follow the same

accounting principles as the parent company. Intercompany trans-

actions have been eliminated in the consolidated accounts. 

Acquired subsidiaries are reported in the financial statements

on the basis of the parent company’s acquisition cost. The cost

of the shares in the parent company’s books is eliminated against

the equity in the subsidiary at the date of acquisition. The

acquisition cost is allocated by attributing fair values to the iden-

tifiable assets and liabilities acquired. Surplus value in excess of

the fair value of identifiable net assets is reported in the balance

sheet as goodwill. Goodwill is amortised linearly through the

income statement over its expected useful economic life. 

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES
When translating the financial statements of the foreign sub-

sidiaries to Norwegian currency, the items in the income state-

ment are translated at the average exchange rate for the finan-

cial year, and items in the balance sheet are translated at the

exchange rate at the balance sheet date. The translation differ-

ence arising is included in the income statement as other finan-

cial income/other financial expenses.

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES
Investments in subsidiaries are valued at the cost method in the

parent company accounts. The investment is valued as cost of

acquiring shares in the subsidiary, provided write down is not

required. Write down to fair value is carried out when the

reduction in value is caused by circumstances which may not 

be regarded as incidental, and deemed necessary by generally

accepted accounting principles. Write downs are reversed when

the cause of the initial write down is no longer present.  

Investments in associated companies are valued in accordance

with the equity method. The share of profits is based on profits

after tax in the associated company, less internal gains and pos-

sible amortisation of surplus value caused by the cost of shares

being higher than the acquired share of equity. In the income

statement, the share of profit is stated as financial income/

financial expenses.

REVENUE RECOGNITION AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Revenue from sale of services is recognised according to the

percentage of completion method. Work in progress is recog-

nised at estimated sales value. Movement in work in progress 

is included in operating revenue.

CLASSIFICATION AND VALUATION 
OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets meant for permanent ownership or use are classified 

as fixed assets. Other assets are classified as current assets.

Receivables to be paid within one year are always classified 

as current assets. Short- and long-term liabilities are classified

correspondingly.

Current assets are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Short-term debt is recognised at nominal value at time 

of establishment. Fixed assets are valued at cost. However, if a

decline in value is expected not to be temporary, fixed assets are

written down to recoverable amount. Fixed assets with a limited

useful economic life are depreciated in accordance with a linear

depreciation plan. Long-term debt is recognised at nominal

value at time of establishment.

DEBTORS
Trade receivables and other current receivables are recorded in

the balance sheet at nominal value less provisions for doubtful

debts. Provisions for doubtful debts are calculated on the basis

of individual assessments. In addition, for the remainder of

accounts receivables outstanding balances, a general provision 

is made to cover expected losses.

FOREIGN CURRENCY
Monetary items denominated in a foreign currency are translat-

ed at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Financial

instruments, mainly forward exchange contracts and currency

swaps, are used to hedge all significant items denominated in the

most common foreign currencies. These hedges are included at

market value at 31 December.

Realised and unrealised currency effects are included on a net

basis in either other financial income or other financial expenses.

Premiums paid for currency and interest rate options are 

capitalised and amortised over the life of the contract. 

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Financial investments not regarded as long-term are classified as

current assets in the balance sheet. These short-term financial

investments are valued at market value at the balance sheet date

based on a portfolio assessment.

Financial review

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Long-term shareholdings where DNV does not exercise signifi-

cant influence are recognised at cost. Each investment is written

down to net realisable value if lower than cost.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant and equipment are capitalised and depreciated

over the estimated useful economic life. Maintenance costs are

expensed as incurred, whereas improvement and upgrading are

assigned to the acquisition cost and depreciated along with the

asset. If carrying value of a non-current asset exceeds the esti-

mated recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of

the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present

value.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development costs are expensed when incurred.

PENSIONS
Pension costs and pension liabilities for the defined benefit

plans are estimated on the basis of linear earnings and assump-

tions of: discount rate, projected annual salary adjustments,

pension and other payments from the national insurance fund,

expected annual return on plan assets and actuarial assump-

tions of deaths, voluntary resignations etc. Plan assets are valued

at fair value and deducted from net pension liabilities in the

balance sheet. Changes in the pension liabilities due to changes

in pension plans are recognised over ten years. Effects of changes

in estimates, changes in assumptions and deviations from actu-

arial assumptions are recognised over ten years. 

TAX
The tax expense in the income statement includes taxes payable

and change in deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are calculated

based on the temporary differences existing between book values

and tax values, together with tax loss carry-forwards at the end of

the accounting period. Tax-increasing and tax-reducing tempo-

rary differences expected to reverse in the same period are offset

and calculated on a net basis. Deferred tax assets are recognised

to the extent utilisation of these assets can be justified.

Revaluation of land has been treated as a permanent difference.

LITIGATION
If Det Norske Veritas Group is involved in litigation, and a claim

has been made, then provisions for these claims are made in

the accounts based on a best estimate of the validity and amount

of the claim.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUBSIDIARIES OF DET NORSKE VERITAS FOUNDATION

Det Norske Veritas Foundation owns 100% of the shares in Det Norske Veritas Holding AS.

Company Business Share Owner- Book
office capital ship value

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS Bærum 240 100% 240.0

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS owns two subsidiaries 100%, Det Norske Veritas AS and Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS. Det Norske Veritas AS 
has 82 subsidiaries. With the exception of some financial transactions, Det Norske Veritas is operating through Det Norske Veritas Holding AS 
and its subsidiaries around the world.

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR DET NORSKE VERITAS HOLDING AS:

Income Statement 2005 2004 2003

Total operating revenue 6 697.2 5 957.2 5 762.0
Total operating expenses 6 002.1 5 568.0 5 302.8

Operating profit 695.1 389.2 459.2

Net financial income (expenses) 21.4 (61.5) (13.1)

Tax expense (257.0) (175.5) (143.3)

Profit for the year 459.5 152.2 302.8

Of this minority interests 2.2 1.7 0.0
Of this majority interests 457.3 150.5 302.8

Balance sheet 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Fixed assets Equity
Intangible fixed assets 218.9 108.5 137.0 Paid-in capital 240.0 240.0 240.0
Tangible fixed assets 1 156.4 1 151.2 1 156.9 Retained earnings 2 961.7 2 504.4 2 353.9
Financial fixed assets 797.6 673.7 864.6 Minority interests 11.4 9.2 0.0

Total fixed assets 2 172.9 1 933.4 2 158.5 Total equity 3 213.1 2 753.6 2 593.9

Current assets Liabilities
Debtors 1 925.1 1 685.4 1 576.9 Provisions 420.2 393.9 467.8
Short-term financial investm. 242.6 0.0 0.0 Bank loans 0.0 0.0 0.0
Cash and bank deposits 871.8 625.6 439.4 Current liabilities 1 579.1 1 096.9 1 113.1

Total current assets 3 039.5 2 311.0 2 016.3 Total liabilities 1 999.3 1 490.8 1 580.9
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL ASSETS 5 212.4 4 244.4 4 174.8 AND LIABILITIES 5 212.4 4 244.4 4 174.8

Financial review

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)



60 DNV ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Financial review

3. OPERATING REVENUE
DET NORSKE VERITAS

GROUP

2005 2004 2003

Business area:

Maritime 2 690.4 2 478.1 2 364.0
Certification 1 999.4 1 840.7 1 829.4
Technology Services 1 138.6 934.1 890.5
Consulting 490.4 435.0 431.4
Other 378.4 269.3 246.7

Total operating revenue 6 697.2 5 957.2 5 762.0

Geographical area:
Nordic countries 2 653.3 2 481.8 2 334.4
Europe and Africa 1 780.1 1 578.1 1 541.3
Asia Pacific 1 466.4 1 287.5 1 224.8
North and South America 797.4 609.8 661.5

Total operating revenue 6 697.2 5 957.2 5 762.0

4. PAYROLL EXPENSES

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

0.0 0.0 0.0 Salaries 2 713.4 2 550.4 2 363.5
0.0 0.0 0.0 Payroll tax 431.0 415.7 370.2
0.0 0.0 0.0 Pension costs 334.6 413.7 443.4
0.0 0.0 0.0 Other contributions 212.7 158.4 181.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 Total payroll expenses 3 691.7 3 538.2 3 358.7

0 0 0 Average number of employees 6 166 6 113 5 894

5. REMUNERATION AND LOANS TO PRESIDENT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS ETC.

President and Chief Executive Officer Miklos Konkoly-Thege has an annual basic salary of NOK 2 652 000. He does not participate in the Group’s
incentive schemes. Konkoly-Thege’s total salaries and other remunerations for 2005 amount to NOK 2 839 004. Konkoly-Thege will retire in May
2006, and he will be succeeded by Henrik O. Madsen. Konkoly-Thege will receive pension equal to one year’s annual basic salary for the first
year, decreasing on a linear basis to 26/30*66% of annual basic salary at the age of 65 (in 2008). Calculated pension cost for Konkoly-Thege in
2005 amounted to NOK 318 530.

As per 31 December 2005, President and Chief Executive Officer Miklos Konkoly-Thege had the following loan from Det Norske Veritas AS:

Amount Interest Repayment period Security

1 188 892 1.25% as per 31.12.2005 December 2015 1st priority mortgage  

Total remuneration paid to members of the Board of Directors amounted to NOK 1 519 167 in 2005. Remuneration to the members of the
Control Committee amounted to NOK 162 000 in 2005.

Fees to the auditors for statutory audit in Det Norske Veritas Foundation amounted in 2005 to NOK 280 000. Fees to Ernst & Young AS for other
entities in Norway amounted to NOK 1.4 million for statutory audit, NOK 0.2 million for tax consultancy services, NOK 0.1 million for other attest
services and NOK 2.0 million for non-audit services. Fees to Ernst & Young for services outside Norway amounted to NOK 4.4 million for statutory
audit, NOK 1.5 million for tax consultancy services and NOK 0.4 million for other attest services. Fees to other auditors for services outside Norway
amounted to NOK 4.6 million for statutory audit, NOK 1.6 million for tax consultancy services and NOK 0.9 million for other attest services.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)



6. PENSION COSTS, PLAN ASSETS AND DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION LIABILITIES
Det Norske Veritas has both defined benefit pension plans and contribution pension plans. The defined benefit pension plans are covered
through separate pension funds or through arrangements with insurance companies. The future pension benefits are based on the employee’s
salary level at the time of retirement and on the number of years of membership. The basis for calculating the pension cost and the pension
liabilities included in the accounts are shown in this note. Contribution to the Group’s pension plans are made in accordance with common
actuarial methods in the country where the pension plan is administered. The pension assets in Norway are invested as follows:

Market value of plan assets in Norway 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2005 2004 2003

Buildings and property 166.2 147.0 147.0
Norwegian bonds, long-term 0.0 0.0 136.5
Mutual equity funds and hedge funds 1 250.5 957.7 775.1
Norwegian bonds and bond funds 781.1 770.9 826.1
Non-Norwegian bonds and bond funds 473.0 457.8 93.8
Bank accounts, other assets and liabilities 363.7 301.9 359.6

Total market value of plan assets 3 034.5 2 635.2 2 338.1
Actual return on plan assets 381.9 248.1 323.3

Funded Norwegian defined Other defined benefit
benefit pension plans pension plans

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Net present value of this year’s pension contribution 141.3 135.5 134.5 46.9 53.1 45.3
Interest expense on pension liabilities 125.6 120.3 118.6 43.8 42.8 35.3
Expected return on plan assets (157.3) (109.3) (88.7) (33.4) (28.2) (21.7)
Payroll tax 15.5 20.6 23.2 0.6 1.2 1.2
Amortisation 47.8 97.4 112.7 21.6 8.3 19.6
Curtailment/pension plan changes (15.6) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (11.0) (5.0)

Net pension cost 157.3 264.5 300.3 79.5 66.2 74.7

Plan assets and pension liabilities Funded Norwegian defined Other defined benefit
benefit pension plans pension plans

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Market value of plan assets 3 034.5 2 635.2 2 338.1 596.6 538.5 451.2
Actuarial present value of pension liabilities (2 790.0) (2 562.9) (2 593.6) (1 082.3) (929.5) (878.8)
Payroll tax (38.3) (62.6) (108.8) (9.5) (14.2) (13.8)
Unrecognised net loss 314.7 482.3 974.9 197.2 106.0 130.8

Net prepaid pension (liabilities) 520.9 492.0 610.6 (298.0) (299.2) (310.6)

Effective from 2005, the assumptions for calculation of the pension liabilities in Norway have been changed. The consequence in 2005 is
increased pension liabilities of NOK 195 million. Effective from 2005, the paid-in capital and subordinated loans in the pension funds, NOK 
516 million are included in the plan assets. NOK 516 million have been reclassified to plan assets in the comparable figures for 2004 and 2003.
The calculated return on these plan assets is NOK 35 million in 2005.

The calculation of the pension liabilities in Norway is based on the following assumptions 2005 2004 2003

Discount rate 4.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Projected annual salary adjustment 3.5% 4.0% 4.0%
Projected annual increase in pension benefit 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Projected annual increase of Norwegian government basis pension 2.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Expected annual return on plan assets 4.5% 6.0% 6.0%

Ordinary retirement age in Det Norske Veritas is 67 years. Some managers and employees are entitled to retire before the age of 67.
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9. TAX

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Tax expense consists of:

6.5 6.1 5.3 Norwegian wealth tax 6.5 6.1 5.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 Norwegian income tax 128.9 46.6 68.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 Income tax outside Norway 135.1 111.0 148.3
1.7 8.5 2.9 Change in deferred tax in Norway (16.3) 26.1 (65.7)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Change in deferred tax outside Norway 11.0 0.4 (4.5)

8.2 14.6 8.2 Tax expense 265.2 190.2 151.5
Tax on profit at 28% 208.3 94.6 128.5
Tax effect of:
Foreign tax exempt branches (7.0) (4.0) (13.0)
Wealth tax 6.5 6.1 5.3
Differences between tax rates in Norway and abroad 20.9 35.2 11.1
Permanent differences 36.5 58.3 19.6

Tax expense 265.2 190.2 151.5

Net tax-reducing/tax-increasing 
temporary differences

(0.2) (0.2) (24.3) Fixed assets 97.3 62.7 52.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 Current assets (3.2) (4.2) 33.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 Liabilities (422.4) (276.8) (315.8)

(15.4) (21.7) (28.2) Tax loss to be carried forward (25.3) (107.6) (184.3)

(15.6) (21.9) (52.5) Basis for deferred tax asset/liability (353.6) (325.9) (414.7)

28% 28% 28% Tax rates applied 10–43% 10–45% 10–40%

(4.4) (6.1) (14.7) Deferred tax asset (120.5) (114.6) (151.7)

0.0 0.0 0.0 Deferred tax liability 9.6 14.3 24.2

Financial review

7. FINANCIAL INCOME AND FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
27.9 10.5 1.1 Return on financial investments 35.6 10.5 (3.0)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Profit from investment in associates 3.9 0.0 3.2
0.0 0.3 18.6 Net interest received from group companies 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 1.8 Other interest received 13.2 16.6 35.4

(0.5) (0.9) (8.5) Other financial items  (3.9) (78.6) (35.7)

27.4 9.9 13.0 Net financial income (expenses) 48.8 (51.5) (0.1)

8. FINANCIAL MARKET RISK
Det Norske Veritas has revenue and expenses in 70 currencies. Of these, five currencies (NOK, USD, EUR, SEK and GBP) make up for
approximately 75% of the total revenue. In many currencies, DNV has a natural hedge through a balance of revenue and expenses. 
Major imbalances on the balance sheet are hedged through forward exchange contracts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)
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10. CHANGES IN THE GROUP STRUCTURE
External 

revenue incl.
Company/business activity Acquired Sold in 2005 acct.

Rutherford Holding Ltd. (Jardine Group) January 2005 27.0
Cortest Columbus Technologies Inc. Group (CCT Group) February 2005 99.0
Tireno Innovations AG December 2005 0.0
Alpha Miljørådgivning AS (business activity) January 2005
Primalux Technology Co. Ltd. (business activity) January 2005 5.2
proNavis AS November 2005 0.5
Det Norske Veritas Inspection AB October 2005 264.6
Det Norske Veritas Nuclear Technology AB October 2005 24.6
Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS’ facility management activity September 2005 9.0

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
This year’s This year’s Goodwill

Company/ business activity additions depreciation 31 Dec.

Rutherford Holding Ltd (Jardine Group) 26.2 (5.2) 21.0 
Cortest Columbus Technologies Inc. 56.6 (9.9) 46.7 
Tireno Innovations AG 25.6 0.0 25.6 
Alpha Miljørådgivning 4.0 (0.8) 3.2 
Primalux Technology 7.9 (1.6) 6.3 
proNavis AS 0.2 (0.2) 0.0 

Total 120.5 (17.7) 102.8 

The goodwill is depreciated linearly over a five-year period, based on an evaluation of the economic life of the intangible assets.

12. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
On 1 September 2005, DNV merged the facility management activity in DNV Eiendom AS (100 employees) with Coor Service Management AS’
operations in Norway. After the merger, Det Norske Veritas Holding AS owns 50% of Coor Service Management AS; however, DNV will not have
controlling interest. The investment is recognised in accordance with the equity method in the accounts of Det Norske Veritas Group.

Purchase of 50% of the shares in Coor Service Management AS 16.1

50% of profit after tax in Coor Service Management AS, 1 September – 31 December 2005 3.9

Investment in associates 31 December 2005 20.0

13. DIVESTMENTS
On 14 October 2005 DNV sold the Swedish subsidiaries Det Norske Veritas Inspection AB and Det Norske Veritas Nuclear Technology AB to 
the Swedish company Inspecta Sweden AB. A sales gain of NOK 189.6 million from the transaction is included in the 2005 accounts. From the
merger of the facility management activity in Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS with Coor Service Management AS, a sales gain of NOK 18.9
million is included in the 2005 accounts.
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14. FIXED ASSETS
Land, buildings Office equipment

and other property fixtures and fittings

Cost at 1 January 2005 1 281.7 1 334.8
Additions from acquisitions 0.0 10.2
Other additions in 2005 27.3 120.4
Disposals from divestments (0.6) (4.9)
Other disposals in 2005 (2.1) (24.4)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2005 (397.1) (1 182.2)

Book value at 31 December 2005 909.2 253.9

Depreciation 2005 17.0 102.0
Economic life More than 10 years 3–10 years
Depreciation plan Linear Linear

Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS has a tenancy agreement with Det Norske Veritas Pension Fund for Supplementary Pension Benefits for an office
building in Stavanger. In 2005 the rent amounted to NOK 8.4 million. The tenancy agreement is non-terminable for 30 years starting in 1984.

Det Norske Veritas Pension Fund for Supplementary Pension Benefits has an option to sell the property to Det Norske Veritas at cost less
accumulated depreciation at the end of the period (year 2014).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)

15. LONG-TERM SHAREHOLDINGS

Ownership Market Book

Company value value

Røisheim Eiendom AS 4.1% 0.3

SMB Invest III ASA 4.9% 2.9 2.9

Shares owned by DNV Foundation 3.2

Hua-Eng-Wei International Testing Co.Ltd. 49.0% 8.4

Ship Manoeuvring Simulator Center AS 40.0% 1.8

Vité Inc. 15.1% 0.0

TT Holding AS 11.3% 1.1

SA Isoscope 10.0% 0.0

Marintek AS 9.0% 0.0

IT Fornebu AS 2.1% 0.0

Blade Test Centre AS 25.0% 5.5

Shares owned by subsidiaries 16.8

Total long-term shareholdings 20.0

16. OTHER LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
DET NORSKE VERITAS

GROUP

2005 2004 2003

Loans to employees 64.4 60.3 64.6

Other long-term receivables 175.8 110.5 134.4

Total other long-term receivables 240.2 170.8 199.0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)

17.  CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
Det Norske Veritas Holding AS has entered into an agreement for a corporate bank account system with DnB NOR Bank ASA, where most 
of DNV's legal entities participate. The agreement includes an overdraft facility of NOK 50 million.

Det Norske Veritas AS has entered into an agreement for a cash pool system with ABN Amro, where most of DNV’s legal entities in the Euro
countries participate. The agreement includes an overdraft facility of EUR 2.75 million, guaranteed by Det Norske Veritas Holding AS.

Det Norske Veritas AS has entered into an agreement for a cash pool system with Handelsbanken, where all legal entities in Sweden participate. 
The agreement includes an overdraft facility of SEK 10 million.

Balances on bank accounts participating in the corporate bank account system/cash pooling systems are considered as internal assets or liabilities
vis-à-vis other DNV participants. For DNV on a consolidated basis, the net total balance of NOK 234.5 million with DnB NOR Bank ASA, EUR 
0,1 million with ABN Amro and SEK 286 million with Handelsbanken are included in Cash and bank deposits/(overdrafts) in the balance sheet 
at 31 December.

18.  BANK LOANS
In January 2004, Det Norske Veritas Holding AS signed an agreement for a NOK 750 million multi-currency revolving credit facility with an
international bank syndicate. The facility expires in January 2009. The facility is undrawn as per year-end 2005.

The credit agreement supporting this facility includes a negative pledge clause, and also restrict Det Norske Veritas’ ability to freely dispose of
main real estate holdings and principal subsidiaries. The credit agreement further requires that DNV on a consolidated basis maintains a certain
minimum level of equity and that the net interest bearing debt does not exceed a set level relative to the equity. DNV was well within these 
limits at year-end.

19. GUARANTEES

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

0.0 0.0 0.0 Guarantee commitments not included in the accounts 20.6 25.1 17.6

20. EQUITY
Foundation Other DNV Subsidiaries of Minority DNV

capital equity Foundation DNV Foundation interests Group

Equity 31 December 2004 283.5 321.9 605.4 2 504.4 9.2 3 119.0

Profit for the year 19.2 19.2 457.3 2.2 478.7

Equity 31 December 2005 283.5 341.1 624.6 2 961.7 11.4 3 597.7
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GRI

Only the indicators that are currently seen to be relevant to DNV’s worldwide operations as a service provider have been 

included. DNV will continuously assess the indicators used and the need to further broaden the reporting practices.

The economic performance indicators suggested in the GRI guidelines have not been referenced in the index below. 

Most of these indicators, however, are covered in the financial review. The financial statements in this report have 

been prepared in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act of 1998 and accounting principles generally accepted 

in Norway.

This index shows where you can find information on the main reporting elements and indicators of the GRI. 

In some cases, reference is made to information that may be found on our web site: www.dnv.com.

Global Reporting Initiative index

DNV has made use of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) guidelines and the principles 

of the UN Global Compact when selecting environmental and social indicators to measure 

DNV’s performance.

GRI REFERENCE INDICATORS PAGE

Environmental Performance Indicators

EN3 Energy 43

EN8, EN10, EN11 Emissions, Effluents and Waste 43

EN17 Renewable energy 43

GRI REFERENCE INDICATORS PAGE

Social Performance Indicators

LA1, LA2 Employment Cover, 38–40

LA5 - LA8 Health and Safety 41–43

LA9 Training and Education 5, 38–40

LA10, LA11 Diversity and Opportunity 7–13, 38–40, 60

HR1 Human Rights 45

HR4 Non-discrimination 38–40

SO1 Community 45

SO2 Bribery and Corruption 45

GRI REFERENCE INDICATORS PAGE

General

1.1 Sustainability vision and strategy 2, 7–13, 41–45

1.2 Chief executive statement 5

2.1 - 2.8 Organisational profile Cover, 3, 7–13, 14–29, 52–65

2.10 - 2.16 Report scope Cover, 7–13, 68 

2.17 - 2.18 Report profile 66, 70

3.1 - 3.7 Structure and Governance 2, 7–13, 46–50, web

3.13 - 3.20 Policies and management systems 3, 7–13, 41–49
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